
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 
Date Thursday 7 November 2019 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 

Part A 
 

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement. 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the meeting held 24 September 2019  (Pages 3 - 20) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties, if any   

6. Media Relations   

7. Business Durham - Progress Report:  (Pages 21 - 42) 

 (i) Joint Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services.  

(ii) Presentation by the Managing Director – Business Durham, 
Regeneration and Local Services. 

8. Visit County Durham (VCD) - Development and Marketing Activity:  
(Pages 43 - 80) 

 (i) Joint Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services.  

(ii) Presentation by the Managing Director – Visit County Durham, 
Regeneration and Local Services. 



9. Economy and Enterprise OSC Scrutiny Review - Support provided to 
the retail sector by Durham County Council  (Pages 81 - 102) 

 Joint Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the 
Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services – presented by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Transformation and Partnerships. 

10. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

 
 

Helen Lynch 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 

  County Hall 
  Durham 
  30 October 2019 

 
To: The Members of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee: 
 

Councillor M Clarke (Chair) 
Councillor R Manchester (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors E Adam, J Atkinson, A Batey, R Crute, S Dunn, D Hall, 
T Henderson, J Higgins, P Howell, S Iveson, L Maddison, J Maitland, 
R Ormerod, E Scott, P Sexton, W Stelling, T Tucker, M Wilkes and M Wilson 
 
Co-opted Members: 
 
Mr G Binney and Mrs R Morris 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Martin Tindle Tel: 03000 269 713 

 
 
 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

ECONOMY AND ENTERPRISE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
At a Meeting of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
held in County Hall, Durham on Tuesday 24 September 2019 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor M Clarke (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors E Adam, A Batey, R Crute, S Dunn, T Henderson, J Higgins, P Howell, 
S Iveson, L Maddison, R Manchester, R Ormerod, E Scott, T Tucker and M Wilson 
 
Co-opted Members: 

Mr G Binney and Mrs R Morris 
 
Also Present: 

Councillors J Clare and M Davinson 

 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J Atkinson, D Hall, P Sexton 
and B Avery, a Member of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
No notification of Substitute Members had been received. 
 
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held 27 June 2019 were agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor P Howell declared an interest in Item 8 – Selective Licensing, as a private 
landlord. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



5 Items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties  
 
There were no items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties. 
 
 

6 Media Relations  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to the recent prominent 
articles and news stories relating to the remit of the Economy and Enterprise 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (for copy see file of minutes). 
   
The articles included a two-week festival celebrating Bishop Auckland’s rich and 
varied history, Friday 13 September to Saturday 28 September 2019.  She added 
that Forrest Park (Newton Aycliffe) Limited securing outline planning permission to 
develop a 55-hectare site for commercial and manufacturing use, 1.75 million 
square feet of business, industrial, ware house and trade units, a 60-bed hotel, 
public house and roadside restaurant and retail units next to the A1(M).  It was 
added that the Committee would receive an overview of strategic employment sites 
within the County at its meeting in January 2020 and Members would visit Forrest 
Park and other strategic sites in the county in May 2020. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer explained there had been an article referring to 
new stores opening in Durham City, namely TG Hughes, Odeon and Lidl.  She 
explained there was also mention of the new cinema, bowling alley, gin bar and 
various restaurants as well as M&Co moving into the former Marks and Spencer 
unit.  The Overview and Scrutiny Officer concluded by noting an article highlighting 
construction was underway on an office development set to support more than 400 
jobs in Durham City, ‘One Milburngate’ offering Grade A offices within the city, set to 
be completed in 2021. 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the presentation be noted. 
 
 

7 North East Local Industrial Strategy - Progress Update  

 
The Chair welcomed the Regeneration Policy Team Leader, Glenn Martin who was 
in attendance to provide the Committee with an update in relation to the North East 
Local Industrial Strategy (NE LIS) (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Regeneration Policy Team Leader thanked the Chair and Committee for the 
opportunity to once again speak in relation the NE LIS.  He reminded Members that 
the NE LIS sat in between the National Industrial Strategy (NIS) and the North East 
Strategic Economic Plan (NE SEP) and noted that the strategic plan for the 
Northern Powerhouse was another element to be aware of. 

Page 4



Members noted the process in terms of the NE LIS, with LIS approvals from 
Government due in Autumn, drafts having been submitted.  The Regeneration 
Policy Team Leader explained that nine “proposition summary packs’ had been 
circulated by the North East Combined Authority (NECA) with: five based upon the 
NIS ‘foundations’, namely ideas, people, places, infrastructure and business 
environment; and four based upon the NE SEP ‘areas of strategic importance’, 
namely manufacturing, digital, energy and health.  He added these were due to be 
agreed and signed-off by the end of September. 
 
The Regeneration Policy Team Leader reminded Members of the engagement that 
had taken place via the North East Local Enterprise Partnership (NELEP), with the 
Leader, Councillor S Henig on the NELEP Board.  He added that there was 
representation on the NECA, the Vice-Chair of the County Durham Economic 
Partnership (CDEP) sat on the NE LIS Evidence Forum and a NE LIS Summit had 
been held. 
 
The Committee were reminded of the purpose of the LIS as set out by the former 
Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local Government, James 
Brokenshire, linking to the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) the replacement for 
EU Structural Funding.  The Regeneration Policy Team Leader explained that Local 
Authorities were still awaiting official consultation on the UKSPF, originally due 
Autumn 2018, with some thought that it may now be next year, within Government’s 
longer-term spending plans.  Members were informed of recent consultation via 
various Government Select Committees, with feedback being given in terms of 
asking for clarity, and a recent Commons Briefing Paper noting levels of funding 
should be maintained at its current level and allocated on need.   
 
The Regeneration Policy Team Leader explained that issues included: an unclear 
position of the new Prime Minister and Chancellor on regional growth and funding; 
the ongoing Brexit uncertainty including replacement of EU funding, merging of 
funds and competitive bidding; and the investment in Combined Authorities. 
 

L Maddison entered the meeting at 9.40am 
 
The Committee were reminded of all those involved in terms of influencing, both 
through engagement and lobbying, including: civil servants; Industrial Communities 
Alliance; County Council’s Network; Chief Economic Development Officer’s Society; 
and other think tanks. 
 
The Chair thanked the Regeneration Policy Team Leader and noted the Brexit date 
of 31 October rapidly approaching and asked as regards what would be in place 
after this date, would the SPF come into effect immediately.  The Regeneration 
Policy Team Leader noted that the EU Structural Fund ran until 2020, with some 
elements beyond that date, and all indications were for the SPF to follow as soon as 
possible after that, adding that any SPF consultation would be welcomed by the 
Authority. 

Page 5



Mrs R Morris asked as regards the four areas touched upon and noted she felt it 
would be useful to have publicity of the county, giving companies and businesses 
insight in advance as to what we have to offer, allowing us to compete.  The 
Regeneration Policy Team Leader noted that there had been a number of 
documents considered at a recent NELEP summit relating to the NE LIS and he 
would look to see if they were in the public domain.  However, these documents 
were inward looking, and he felt the question was more focussed on being outward 
looking.  Mrs R Morris noted that was correct, adding she felt that County Durham 
had a number of leading-edge companies and there was a good opportunity to 
promote and build upon what we had.   
 
Resolved:  
 
That the report and presentation be noted. 
 
The Chair noted the Selective Licensing presentation would be taken as the next 
item for consideration. 
 
 

8 Selective Licensing - Progress Update  
 
The Chair welcomed the Strategic Manager for Housing, Lynn Hall and the Project 
Coordinator, Joanne Thompson who were in attendance to provide the Committee 
with an update in relation to Selective Licensing (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Strategic Manager for Housing thanked the Chair and Committee for the 
opportunity to once again speak in relation to Selective Licensing and noted that the 
associated Cabinet report had slipped back to November 2019.  She reminded 
Members of the definition of Selective Licensing: “Selective Licensing is where the 
whole or part(s) of a county/borough are subject to a designation under the Housing 
Act 2004.  The designation makes it compulsory for all private rented 
accommodation in that area to get a Licence from the Local Authority”. 
 
It was explained that in October 2018 Cabinet had agreed to authorised consultation 
on proposals to introduce Selective Licensing across the county, and for a business 
case for Selective Licensing across the County to be prepared.  The Strategic 
Manager for Housing reminded Members of the criteria for designating a Selective 
Licensing area, an area having to suffer from one or more of: low housing demand; 
anti-social behaviour; poor property conditions; high levels of migration; a high level 
of deprivation; and high levels of crime.  It was added that, other than migration, 
there was a lot of data linked to the other criteria and therefore the focus would be 
on those five.  She noted that should a designation cover more that 20 percent of its 
geographical area or more that 20 percent of the private rented stock, an application 
to the Secretary of State was required. 
 

Page 6



The Strategic Manager for Housing noted that a great deal of work had been 
undertaken in terms of gathering data from teams within the Council, as well as from 
partners such as Durham Constabulary and the County Durham and Darlington Fire 
and Rescue Service.  She explained that in looking at tenure information, around 
half of the data had been obtained, with that data highlighting 23 percent of housing 
stock being private rented.  It was noted additional work had been undertaken in 
terms of the fees that would apply and also consultation on what licencing 
conditions would be included.  The Strategic Manager for Housing noted those three 
elements would be consulted upon following Cabinet in November. 
 
The Committee were informed that other interim work had included: a focus group 
of landlords; landlord data collection; landlord accreditation; tenant training; and 
tenant support.  Members were referred to a map highlighting possible designation 
areas with the Strategic Manager for Housing noting data so far broken down by 
middle layer super output area (MSOA). 
 
The Strategic Manager for Housing explained that the next steps were for: a report 
to Cabinet in November; consultation to follow from December 2019 through to 
February 2020, looking at the three elements as previously mentioned; submission 
to the Secretary of State; and then implementation to follow.  She added that other 
Local Authorities that had submitted to the Secretary of State had a response in 
around 12 weeks from submission. 
 
The Strategic Manager for Housing concluded by noting she was working with the 
relevant Portfolio Holders, a potential snap general election had the potential to 
delay the process, and the Committee would be consulted as part of the process. 
 
The Chair noted that a special meeting of the Committee was scheduled for 25 
November 2019 for a further update.  He thanked the Strategic Manager for 
Housing and asked Members of the Committee for their comments and questions. 
 
Councillor P Howell noted for the minutes he was a private sector landlord.  He 
asked as regards what the mix of landlords was in terms of those being consulted 
with, the Focus Group mentioned, were they landlords with one or two properties or 
several hundred.  He also asked as regards the licensing approach and fees, 
reiterating his experiences previously explained at Committee, and also asked if the 
colours on the maps shown referred to priority areas or otherwise.  The Strategic 
Manager for Housing noted the colouration on the map was simply for clarity, not a 
reference to priority.  The Project Coordinator explained that in terms of landlords, 
the Landlords’ Forum was approached and from 20-30 landlords, nine volunteered 
to sit on the Focus Group with those having a range in terms of portfolio size, a 
number of agents for larger landlords as well as those with only a handful of 
properties.  The Strategic Manager for Housing noted in terms of fees the level had 
not yet been determined and reminded the Committee that the fee would only be 
used to fund the administration of the Selective Licensing scheme. 
 

Page 7



Councillor E Adam asked as regards fees, with reference to the free landlord 
accreditation as set out in the interim work.  The Strategic Manager for Housing 
noted the accreditation would be free for one year for those in the three former 
selective licensing areas: Dean Bank, Ferryhill; Chilton West; and Wembley, 
Easington Colliery.  Councillor E Adam asked how comprehensive the data was and 
noted that it appeared there was some areas within Aycliffe West that appeared to 
have been omitted from the list.  The Strategic Manager for Housing explained that 
the data was by MSOA and not Electoral Division and therefore there could be 
some overlap in terms of areas.  The Project Manager noted she could look at the 
specific issue and report back with further information. 
 
Councillor S Dunn asked as regards the white areas on the map that were not 
included at this stage and whether this would preclude them from being included at 
a later date.  The Strategic Manager for Housing noted that if the relevant data was 
received at a later date and this evidenced one or more of the criteria mentioned 
then they could be included, however, that would involve going back to the 
Secretary of State.  Councillor S Dunn expressed his concern that there would not 
be 100 percent coverage of the County, however, noted it was good that it did not 
preclude additions should additional information come to light. 
 
Councillor M Davinson asked how long the designation would last for before data 
would need to be refreshed and updated.  The Strategic Manager for Housing noted 
the designation lasted for five years and that the data collection was ongoing, 
adding that around year three or four the business case would be looked at in 
preparation for resubmission. 
 
Councillor R Crute noted the date for consultation being 19 December and asked 
what communications had been made in terms of the consultation so that Members 
could alert people via their ward surgeries or via Area Action Partnerships (AAPs) 
meetings.  The Project Manager explained a communications plan had been 
produced and would be finalised shortly.  She added this included AAPs, Town and 
Parish Councils and the Landlords’ Forum.  Councillor R Crute asked if the 
Committee would have sight of the engagement plan at their special meeting in 
November as Members may be able to provide useful feedback in terms of potential 
gaps.  The Strategic Manager for Housing noted it could be circulated as soon as it 
had been signed off. 
 
Resolved:  
 
(i) That the report and presentation be noted. 
(ii) That the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee continue 

to receive progress updates in the development of the Selective Licensing 
Scheme. 

 
 

Page 8



(iii) That the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee, as 
agreed in its Work Programme 2019/20 holds a Special Meeting providing an 
opportunity for all Overview and Scrutiny Members to comment on the 
proposed scheme. 

 
 

9 Ultra-Low Emission Vehicles - Overview and Progress  
 
The Chair welcomed the Principal Policy Officer, Peter Ollivere, Policy Officer, 
Rebecca Winlo and the Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader, Maggie 
Bosanquet who were in attendance to speak to the Committee in relation to Ultra-
Low Emission Vehicles (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Principal Policy Officer thanked the Chair and noted Ultra-Low Emission 
Vehicles (ULEVs) included hydrogen fuel vehicle, however, in the main the term 
mostly referred to regular electric vehicles.  He referred Members to figures 
highlighting the successes in terms of household CO2 reduction in the UK and the 
Council, showing a 44 percent reduction nationally between 1990 and 2017, with 
Durham County Council (DCC) having achieved a greater reduction of 52 percent in 
that period.  It was explained that one of the elements of household CO2 emissions 
that had not changed greatly was transport emissions and it was added that ULEVs 
could help in this regard. 
 
The Committee noted policy headlines that included Road to Zero, Government 
aiming for 50-70 percent of all car sales to be ULEVs and the end of ‘conventional 
petrol and diesel’ vehicle sales by 2040.  It was added that there were questions in 
terms of Government’s target, noting that Norway had targets of 100 percent zero 
emission cars for 2025 and with 50 percent of car sales to date in 2019 being 
ULEVs.  Members were reminded that the Council had declared a climate 
emergency, with several other Local Authorities in the region doing so namely 
Gateshead, Newcastle, Northumberland and Sunderland.  The Committee were 
reminded that the Low Carbon Strategy (LCS) predicted exponential growth in 
ULEVs, with Members referred to maps of the region showing the increase from 
2014 through to 2018, noting currently only around 2,500 electric vehicles in the 
region.  Members noted projections for exponential growth in electric vehicles, with 
upper and lower limits of 219,000 and 86,000 by 2030. 
 
The Principal Policy Officer explained that a Council Internal Working Group looking 
at ULEVs had been established in 2019, with representation from various Council 
Teams including: Spatial Policy; Transport; Low Carbon; Corporate Property and 
Land; Legal; Procurement; Funding and Programmes; and Fleet.  It was added 
there was regional workstreams links to NECA projects, an example being funding 
in relation to electric vehicle taxi charging, with details of workstreams being set out 
within the report. 
 

Page 9



The Principal Policy Officer referred Members to a slide detailing ULEV Policy for 
DCC, split by areas: equity and equality; infrastructure; funding; information; 
education; public transport; and fleet.  Members were given information as regards 
the aims and projects within each area, noting in terms of equality and ensuring 
access for everyone within the County to EV charge points, the Scaling on Street 
Charging Infrastructure (SOSCI) project had secured £2 million to deliver 
approximately 100 charge posts across County Durham, with a pilot scheme to 
locate the charge posts within a five minute drive of terraced streets.  It was added 
that terraced streets represented 40 percent of properties within the County. 
 
The Principal Policy Officer explained that in terms of infrastructure the aim was to 
create the right conditions to support people to make the switch to an electric 
vehicle.  He explained that the largest barrier to increasing electric vehicle uptake 
was a lack of charging points, and projects would include: electric filling stations; 
where to locate SOSCI; and renewal of existing charging posts.  It was noted that in 
terms of the aim to secure funding to support increased take up of electric vehicles 
this would include issues relating to: the location for SOSCI; ERDF/Transforming 
the Cities funding for Park and Ride; and a taxi point at Chester-le-Street.  
  
Members were informed that in terms of the aim to work with Durham University and 
partners for further knowledge and opportunities, work had been undertaken on 
driver behaviour.  It was explained that research carried out by Durham University 
had shown that drivers of electric vehicles did not experience range anxiety, 
however potential drivers of electric vehicles did.  Members noted other issues 
highlighted by the research included quality and accessibility of charging 
infrastructure and those having set “A to B” journeys being more likely to drive an 
electric vehicle, with women being less likely to drive an electric vehicle. 
 
The Policy Officer explained that in terms of the Council’s fleet and pool cars there 
was an aim to reduce carbon emission, demonstrate the viability of electric vehicles 
and save public money in terms of running costs.  She added that the associated 
project would look to replace existing pool and fleet vehicles with electric vehicles 
when due for renewal and any procurement of new fleet vehicles must demonstrate 
a business case for not choosing an electric vehicle.  The Policy Officer referred the 
Committee to slides highlighting rapid charging points and the electric vehicle 
roadshow, featuring the Portfolio Holder, Councillor C Marshall. 
 
The Principal Policy Officer noted that other Local Authorities were in various 
positions in relation to electric vehicles with Dundee leading the way with 95 
vehicles, around 40 percent of their fleet.  It was added around 15 percent of their 
taxis were electric, with their target being 25 percent within a few years.  He added 
Dundee operated a free parking scheme for owners of electric vehicles, had two 
rapid charging hubs within the city centre, and offered free electricity for residents, 
albeit on a temporary basis.   
 

Page 10



The Principal Policy Officer noted work being done by North Somerset Council, 
highlighting their partnerships with Elmtronics, a company based in Consett, who 
installed 34 dual electric vehicle charges in North Somerset and a further 22 to other 
Local Authorities in the West of England Combined Authority as part of a £7 million 
package “Source West”. 
 
The Principal Policy Officer noted a new full-time post had been created to help 
deliver projects, although there were still challenges and that the help of Members 
was greatly appreciated. 
 
The Chair thanked the Officers and asked the Committee for their comments and 
questions. 
 
Councillor E Adam noted the great deal of work being undertaken, in the context of 
the climate emergency declared by the Council.  He asked as regards the focus in 
terms of barriers to the uptake of ULEVs and noted the latest studies showed the 
problem being the lack of charging systems.  He noted issues in terms of: different 
types of charging systems; the ability to know whether a charging point was being 
used; the cost of ULEVs; and terraced housing as mentioned within the 
presentation.  The Principal Policy Officer noted is some areas the Council could 
influence to a small extent, with standardisation being something the industry was 
moving towards.  He added there was little the Council could do in terms of the cost 
of vehicles, and highlighted in Norway the cost of a ULEV was comparable with a 
non-electric vehicle.  The Policy Officer reiterated as regards the 100 charging 
points being worked towards and added that there was legislation aimed at 
standardising charge points.  She explained there were government grants available 
in terms of electric vehicles and that estimates in terms of the reduction in the cost 
of batteries and increased efficiency suggested costs would decrease. She added 
that the Council would look to procure a large strategic partner to deliver a network 
for County Durham.   
 
The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader explained that the Durham 
University research had gathered a lot of information, noting that not only were 
electric vehicles expensive there were also waiting times in order to purchase.  She 
added the Electric Vehicle Roadshow event had been very successful and it was 
hoped a similar event could provide further promotion and Overview and Scrutiny 
Members would be invited to attend in November.  The Principal Policy Officer 
noted that consultation in terms of parking and access standards, planning 
applications would look to have larger requirements in terms of the ability to have 
charge points installed, with a Government White Paper on the issue.  Councillor E 
Adam asked as regards existing housing and how to encourage people to take up 
electric vehicles and whether work was being undertaken with social housing 
providers to get them to look at installing charging points.  The Principal Policy 
Officer referred to the SOSCI project and the Sustainability and Climate Change 
Team Leader added that they would explore the idea of working with social housing 
providers to investigate the installation of charging points. 

Page 11



Councillor T Tucker asked as regards properties that did have in-curtilage parking 
and asked if there was grants or incentives available to help meet the cost of 
installing charge points.  The Principal Policy Officer noted there was information as 
regards grants and scheme he could circulate to Members. 
 
Councillor T Henderson noted issues in terms of charge point locations.  He referred 
to the Barnard Castle area noting that many small Town and Parish Council’s did 
not know where to go to seek advice and explained as regards the lack of provision 
of charge points, the nearest being at West Auckland, an issue in the largely rural 
county.  The Principal Project Officer noted the SOSCI included areas within the 
Dales and there would be consultation with communities to gather feedback and 
buy-in.  He reiterated that a new Project Officer would help in terms of working with 
Town and Parish Councils and AAPs on consultation.  Councillor T Henderson 
noted that information for Members would be useful to be able to help provide 
feedback to Town and Parish Councils.  The Policy Officer noted that this was an 
issue the new Officer could look at once in post. 
 
Councillor R Ormerod agreed with the points raised in relation to the Council leading 
by example with their fleet, however, he noted the new headquarters plans only 
included eight electric charge points and asked if there could be assurance the 
number could be increased in the future.  The Principal Policy Officer commented 
that he thought the figure was currently ten charging points however the Fleet 
Manager was in discussion with the relevant colleagues in relation to charging 
points at the new headquarters and commented that the Fleet Manager would be 
attending the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in January 2020 to provide detail on proposals for the Council fleet. 
 
Councillor L Maddison recalled an electric vehicle display held at County Hall a few 
months back which featured an electric refuse vehicle and asked as regards any 
progress on this.  The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader noted that 
the Head of Environment, Oliver Sherratt was very passionate as regards electric 
vehicles, however some of the larger vehicle were very expensive, although it was 
hoped that as prices reduced, they could become more viable.  She added that in 
the case of larger vehicles, hydrogen powered vehicles could be an option, though 
they were complex issues associated with this option.  She noted the initial focus 
was on car and small vans at first, with the larger vehicles when viable, and the 
rurality of the county was also a factor to be considered when looking at solutions. 
 
Mrs R Morris asked as regards public transport within the County, noting Bergen, 
Norway operated electric buses.  She also asked as regards linking to the NELIS 
area of strategic importance “energy”, as mentioned in the previous item, and if 
there were opportunities not just in terms of off-shore wind farms.  The Principal 
Policy Officer noted that there was the Low Carbon Strategy and that the Council 
worked with all the NECA Local Authorities and the NELEP Energy Officer, tying 
into the NE LIS not just in terms of electric vehicles in isolation.   

Page 12



Mrs R Morris noted she felt County Durham was very good, however, as a rural 
county there were specific needs.  The Principal Policy Officer noted that 70 percent 
of journeys within the County were private car journeys.  Mrs R Morris wondered if 
companies and organisations would be willing to subsidise for electric buses for 
their workers. 
 
The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader noted that there was a 
European Rural Development Fund call, due January 2020, for transport areas 
looking at solutions such as solar powered car ports and canopies for charging 
vehicles and larger solar farms that could provide free charging for electric buses.  
She added that there were a few places in the country that operated electric buses, 
however, there were some complex issues in terms of ownership.  Members noted 
that work was ongoing including with the Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS). 
 
Councillor S Dunn noted that many of the reports being considered by Members did 
not appear to have a Climate Change section within Appendix 1 – Implications. 
 

Councillor R Ormerod left the meeting at 10.45am 
 

He asked as regards the costs of the electric refuse vehicles, noting he would 
expect that the Authority would be progressively replacing vehicles over time and 
while there would be a cost implication, he would like to think the Council would 
utilise the best technology possible.  Councillor S Dunn also noted that if use of 
electric buses was to grow then public transport would need to be more attractive, 
especially in rural areas and asked if we work with commercial partners in terms of 
electric vehicles.  The Principal Policy Officer noted that in terms of the DCC Fleet 
the procurement process now included the requirement to prove why an electric 
vehicle would not be chosen.  The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader 
noted the Council had two electric vans and the assumption was now whenever a 
vehicle was to be replaced it would be an electric vehicle unless there was a case 
not to.  She added that in terms of commercial operators it was perhaps more 
difficult, noting the work of Lanchester Wines to become carbon neutral and 
reminded Members of the Business Energy Efficiency Project (BEEP) with one 
strand being to support small and medium enterprises (SMEs) in terms of installing 
electric charge points. 
 
Councillor T Tucker asked as regards any work ongoing in terms of having 
alternative power at existing filing stations and would there be something in place to 
keep employment going, with a large number of existing filing stations and if 
demands for petrol and diesel were to lower many filing stations would struggle.  
She also noted that in regard to the new Council headquarters and charge points, 
that was not the only Council base, with a number of other strategic sites.   
 
 

Page 13



The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader noted there was an ERDF bid 
in terms of solar panels for our depots, with a hope to be have Morrison Busty 100 
percent carbon neutral and noted work at the Louisa Centre, Stanley albeit not 
connected to electric vehicles.  She noted the comments in relation to existing filing 
stations and there was larger national work being undertaken by organisations such 
as the Highways Agency as regards motorways and electric charge points.  The 
Principal Policy Officer noted some large oil companies were investing in charge 
technology companies in preparation.    
 
Councillor E Adam noted the good work being undertaken, however, felt that within 
the UK we were perhaps still ‘playing at the game’ and that investing in public 
transport and moving heavy goods off roads and on to rail was required.  He added 
that perhaps more focus on electric vehicles, park and ride, taxi infrastructure to 
prevent pollution from vehicle idling noting only one charge point at Chester-le-
Street.  Councillor E Adam noted that looking at a national map of charge points 
most were within the major cities, with only three points in between Newcastle and 
Leeds, adding the infrastructure was not there yet.  He understood the constraints of 
what the Council could achieve and noted Climate Change Activist Greta Thunberg 
highlighting at a United Nations meeting that we should not be simply using mealy 
words.  He added as Chair of the Environment and Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee there would be a visit to Lanchester Wines next 
year and there would be an update report on Climate Emergency at the October 
meeting of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
Councillor J Clare noted he felt a key barrier to electric vehicles was range, with 
many potential electric vehicle drivers being reticent to make the change on that 
basis.  He added that in terms of fleet use there was a need to ensure a large 
enough range to be safe.  He explained that installing a charge point was around 
£3,000 however grants of around £500 were available when purchasing certain 
electric vehicles.  He highlighted that a charge from the mains could take up to ten 
hours.  He added that current electric vehicle owners were ‘explorers’ and explained 
that as technology improves it would be important to provide good information and 
advice to the public. 
 
Mr G Binney noted that and Energy Trust report had highlighted hydrogen as an 
alternative fuel for large vehicles such as lorries and buses and asked how such 
technology would be utilised, especially for rural areas, and asked if a mix of 
hydrogen and electric could be the solution.  He added that batteries for electric 
vehicles also had a limited lifespan and contained toxic materials, so he felt that 
new battery technology, recycling of batteries and hydrogen were the future and 
asked if those elements were part of the overarching strategies.  The Principal 
Policy Officer noted the points made and noted that it was important to be able to 
react quickly to changes in technology.  The Policy Officer noted that funding was 
always something to keep an eye on, with there being some uncertainty in terms of 
the national picture relating to hydrogen.   

Page 14



The Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader noted there was always an 
issue in terms of which technology would emerge as the de-facto standard and 
therefore we need to be prepared to take advantage of available funding and react 
to policy and economic drivers.   
 
Resolved:  
 
(i) That the report and presentation be noted. 
(ii) That the progression of the Workstreams set out in this report be noted. 
(iii) That the significant potential of the SOSCI project to fund EV charge points in 

rural and low-income areas be noted.  
(iv) That the Committee supports the development of a ULEV Strategy. 
(v) That a further report and presentation is received at a future meeting of the 

Committee detailing further progress made. 
 
 

10 Quarter Four, 2018/19 and Quarter One, 2019/20 Revenue and 
 Capital Outturn  
 
The Chairman introduced the Finance Manager, Philip Curran to speak to Members 
in relation to the Quarter Four, 2018/19 and Quarter One, 2019/20 Revenue and 
Capital Outturn (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Finance Manager reminded Members of the areas reported upon, the General 
Fund Revenue Account, and the Capital Programme for the Regeneration and Local 
Services Service.   
 
The Finance Manager referred Members to the information relating to Quarter Four 
2018/19 with the service reporting a forecast underspend of approximately £1.481 
million, against a revised budget of £58.079 million.  It was noted that the last two 
columns of the table following paragraph 11 should read Quarter Four and Quarter 
Three.  Members noted the major variances were set out within the report and that 
the service grouping was on track to maintain spending within the cash limit and 
more details were contained within Appendix Two to the report. 
 
As regards the Capital Programme, the Finance Manager explained that the revised 
budget stood at £42.438 million, with a breakdown of the major capital projects 
given at Appendix Three to the report.  Members noted the spend to date of 
£31.930 million and the Finance Manager explained some projects would move 
forward to the 2019/20 budget. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Finance Manager and asked Members for their 
comments and questions on the Quarter Four, 2018/19 report. 
 
Councillor P Howell noted his frustration in terms of the style of the report, feeling it 
was not useful for Members or the general public. 

Page 15



The Finance Manager referred Members to the information relating to Quarter One 
2019/20, noting a difference in that Corporate Property and Land was included.   
He informed Members that the service was reporting a forecast underspend of 
approximately £0.820 million, against a budget of £59.407 million.  Members noted 
that the major variances were set out within the report and that the service grouping 
was on track to maintain spending within the cash limit and more details were 
contained within Appendix Two to the report. 
 
As regards the Capital Programme, the Finance Manager explained that the revised 
budget stood at £67.092 million, with a breakdown of the major capital projects 
given at Appendix Three to the report.  Members noted the spend to date of £5.671 
million and the Finance Manager explained it was expected the budget to be fully 
committed. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Finance Manager and asked Members for their 
comments and questions on the Quarter One, 2019/20 report. 
 
Councillor R Crute noted in relation to the concerns raised by Councillor P Howell 
that there would be budget training for Members, following the conclusion of each of 
the thematic Overview and Scrutiny Committees.  He added that the report format 
mirrored that of the Cabinet reports for consistency.  Councillor P Howell noted he 
welcomed the training and noted issues in terms of capital expenditure and asked if 
that which was carried over would result in a higher spend in this financial year in 
order to catch up.  The Finance Manager noted that schemes would carry forward, 
some programme operating over multiple years.  He added that each quarterly 
report would set out revised positions, highlighting any slippage in terms of the 
delivery of schemes.  Councillor P Howell noted the revenue savings were 
welcomed and he added that if capital was being invested and schemes were being 
completed then this was also good, it was any delay that was the issue. 
 
Councillor T Tucker referred to an overspend in relation to Housing Solutions and 
use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation.  The Finance Manager noted the service 
were looking to reduce the spend in this area, though they needed to be reactive 
when need arose. 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the reports be noted. 
 
 

11 Quarter One 2019/20 Performance Management Report  
 
The Chairman thanked the Strategy Team Leader, Gemma Wilkinson who was in 
attendance to speak to Members in relation to the Quarter One, 2019/20 
Performance Management Report (for copy see file of minutes). 
  

Page 16



The Strategy Team Leader reminded Members of the different types of indicators 
reported, Tracker indicators and Target indicators and the performance reporting 
arrangements for 2019/20 were via a number of key performance questions (KPQs), 
aligned to the “Altogether” framework of six priority themes. 
 
Councillors noted the five areas of focus for “Altogether Wealthier” were: do 
residents have good job prospects; is County Durham a good place to do business; 
do residents have access to decent and affordable housing; is it easy to travel 
around the County; and how well do tourism and culture events contribute to our 
local economy.  Members noted infographics relating to performance under each of 
those areas.  
 
In relation to “do residents have good job prospects” it was noted that the 
employment rate had risen and was above target, however, it was highlighted that it 
was within confidence levels.  The Strategy Team Leader noted the breakdown in 
terms of gender and full-time and part-time jobs and highlighted the gap between 
County Durham and the National percentages in terms of those with an equality act 
core work limiting disability.   
   
The Strategy Team Leader referred to information in relation to those not in 
employment, education or training (NEETs) and noted a slight increase, with 
September being a transition point between school and colleges. 
 
The Committee were referred to the infographics relating to “is County Durham a 
good place to do business?” and it was explained that 2,312 jobs had been created 
or safeguarded from the activities of Business Durham, with further information to 
come forward at a future meeting.  The Strategy Team Leader noted other areas of 
activity and highlighted that the County Durham Plan (CDP) was at the examination 
in public stage, October 2019. 
 
The Strategy Team Leader explained that in terms of “”do residents have access to 
decent and affordable housing?” that elements in relation to selective licensing had 
already been discussed at a previous item.  She added that housing completions 
had increased the current quarter and there had been £250,000 of funding secured 
in terms of the Rapid Rehousing Programme to support homeless people.  
 
In respect of “is it easy to travel around the county?” the Strategy Team Leader 
referred to figures from the Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) 2018 in 
respect of the condition of A, B and C roads, having increased and rated close to 
national standards.  Members were informed of improvements carried out from the 
Cycling and Walking Delivery Plan 2019-29 and noted progress in terms of the rail 
station at Horden.   
 

Councillor S Dunn left the meeting at 11.37am 
 

Page 17



In relation to “how well do tourism and cultural events contribute to our local 
economy?”, the Strategy Team Leader explained that the number of visitors to the 
County had increased, following the trend over the last few years, and highlighted 
statistics relating to a series of events over the year including: Durham Pride; 
Seaham Food Festival; Pyjamarama; and the Cricket World Cup.  She noted grant 
funding towards the Crimdon Coastal Visitor Centre and Events Hub and the 
reopening on Peterlee Library within the Leisure Centre following refurbishment 
works.  
 
The Chair thanked the Strategy Team Leader and asked the Committee for their 
comments and questions. 
 
Councillor E Adam asked as regards the numbers of NEETs and felt they were very 
high compared to national and North East averages.  He asked if more analysis was 
being undertaken to find out why figures remained stubbornly high.  The Strategy 
Team Leader noted she would speak with colleagues within the Children and Young 
People’s Service and confirm as regards figures.  Councillor E Adam noted that it 
would be useful to have percentages and actual numbers of individuals. 
 
Councillor P Howell noted the figures relating to local passenger journeys on the 
bus network and asked if anything was driving the reduction in use. 
 

Councillor E Scott left the meeting at 11.44am 
 
The Strategy Team Leader noted she would look at the issue, policy drivers and 
circulate additional information in due course. 
 
Councillor R Crute noted employment figures and noted it appeared as if there was 
an issue in terms of the type or quality of the jobs in the County, he asked it was 
down to issues such as underemployment or people having two or three part-time 
jobs and asked whether we could drill down into the information.  The Overview and 
Scrutiny Officer noted that a meeting of the Committee, 6 December 2019, would 
focus on employment figures, gross value added.  The Strategy Team Leader 
added that different figures reported had different timescales and associated data 
lag, with disposable household income data being from 2017, with the employment 
rate figures being the most up-to-date. 
 
Councillor P Howell noted he felt the report style for the performance reports was 
excellent and the information very well presented. 
 
Resolved:  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 

Page 18



12 Minutes from the meeting of the County Durham Economic 
 Partnership  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the County Durham Economic Partnership held 12 
July 2019 were received by the Committee for information. 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

             

       

 Economy and Enterprise Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  

7 November 2019 

 Business Durham – Progress Report 

   

 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

 Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 To provide members of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with background detail on the activities of Business 
Durham prior to a presentation by highlighting the work and impact of 
Business Durham in County Durham. 

Executive summary 

2 Members will be aware that the Committee receives, on an annual 
basis, an update on the activities undertaken by Business Durham, 
identifying the impact of that activity on the county. 

3 The last progress report was considered by Committee in September 
2018 and it was agreed by the Committee on 27 June 2019 when 
considering its future work programme that a further progress report 
would come to Committee for consideration. 

4 Arrangements have been made for Brian Archer, Managing Director, 
Business Durham to attend on 7 November 2019 to provide a 
presentation focusing on: 

• Progress in delivering the agreed strategy  

• The performance and impact of Business Durham 

A copy of the presentation is attached as Appendix 2.  

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



Recommendations 

5 Members of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are asked to note and comment upon the information 
provided in the report, during the presentation. 

6 That the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee as 
part of the refresh of the committee’s work programme for 2020/21 
receives a further progress report on activity undertaken by Business 
Durham.  

 
Background 
 
7 Business Durham is the economic development arm of Durham County 

Council with the following mission, vision and strategic aims: 

Mission 
To enable economic growth, create jobs and improve lives in County 
Durham. 
 
Vision 
Business Durham will have a reputation for delivering measurable and 
inclusive economic growth. 
 
Values 
 
• Honest 

• Accountable 

• Results driven 

• Responsive 

• Inclusive  

• Enjoyment 

• Entrepreneurial 

 
Strategic Aims 

1. Build a profile and reputation for County Durham as the best place 
to invest, start or grow a business 

2. Improve our financial resilience and surplus 

3. Deliver measurable inclusive economic growth and account for our 
performance to our stakeholders 

4. Transform our internal systems and processes to become a robust 
and agile organisation with a reputation for quality 

5. Be an employer of choice attracting and retaining the very best 
people 

Page 22



8 Business Durham operates the Council’s industrial and business 
property portfolio via a commercial model, both to attract and grow 
tenant companies but also to use any surplus to pay for Business 
Durham’s public good activities in business engagement, innovation, 
sector development, strategy development, inward investment, and 
enterprise. 

9 Business Durham continues to focus on sectors where activities will 
have the most economic impact.  These sectors (effectively, non-retail 
and non-leisure) account for approximately 9,500 businesses 
(VAT/PAYE registered) in County Durham. 

10 To advise, inform and support its work, Business Durham benefits from 
an Advisory Board, supported by DCC elected Members and private 
sector board members representing a range of business sectors in the 
County. 

Performance Summary and Highlights 

 
11 2018/19 was another successful year for Business Durham, with targets 

being met or exceeded.  Business Durham produced a short Annual 
Review summarising the highlights of the year, which is attached as 
Appendix 3. 

12 The Business Durham Property Team had a busy year with over 
230 office and factory viewings resulting in 84 new lettings. Industrial 
properties in particular were still in high demand with overall occupancy 
at 84% and rental income on target at £4.19m. A number of significant 
Council investments were under consideration at Jade Business Park 
and Station Place, Newton Aycliffe responding to the demand for 
modern industrial space across the County.  

13 Since its launch in May 2017, the Finance Durham Fund has invested 
£3.5M into 10 businesses, generating £5.2M private sector leverage 
and supporting the creation of 148 jobs.  Together the portfolio employs 
over 250 staff across the County in core growth sectors including 
technology, engineering, tourism, renewables and scientific innovation.  
In addition, over 185 companies have benefitted from attending 1-2-1 
Investment Clinics as part of the access to finance programme to help 
businesses become ‘investor ready’.  The Finance Durham Fund is 
managed by Maven Capital Partners on behalf of the Council.  Maven 
also manage one of the five funds that make up the North East Fund, a 
£120m investment programme available to SMEs across Durham, 
Northumberland and Tyne and Wear.  Business Durham works closely 
with the fund managers to ensure businesses in the County are aware 
of the finance available, and to date the North East Fund has made 
25 investments totalling £3m into County Durham businesses. 

Page 23



14 The Digital Drive Durham ERDF programme was launched in 
January 2018 to enable businesses to become more resilient, efficient 
and profitable by using digital technology to gain a competitive edge 
and maximise growth.  To date, 573 eligible businesses have registered 
with the programme and over 160 companies have received 12 hours 
support.  The programme also offers a grant towards the cost of 
businesses implementing new digital technology and equipment within 
their business, and over 118 businesses have had grant offers 
approved to date.  As a result of support received through the 
programme, companies have reported a net increase in employment of 
43.76 FTEs. 

15 ERDF funding approval was received in March 2019 for a three year 
extension to the Durham Business Opportunities Programme 
(DBOP) which will take the programme up to November 2022.  The 
programme engages businesses and connects them with support and 
opportunities to help them to grow.  To date the programme has 
provided intensive assistance to 142 businesses.  This has included 
businesses in the childcare sector, creative businesses, small 
engineering/manufacturing firms and businesses in the food and drink 
sector, as well as ‘Routes to Contract Success’ support to enable 
businesses from a range of sectors to improve their chances of winning 
work.   

16 ERDF funding approval was received in December 2018 for a £6m 
capital grants programme for businesses, the ‘County Durham Growth 
Fund’, which will provide grants for SMEs that are investing in capital 
equipment or new premises in order to support their growth. The fund 
went live from 1 April 2019 and there has been strong interest in the 
capital grants from over 50 companies, which have plans to invest over 
£100k to expand their businesses.  Decisions on the grant applications 
are made by an independent investment panel, chaired by one of the 
private sector members of the Business Durham Advisory Board. 

17 There were 7 inward investment projects during the year, which will 
lead to the creation of over 2400 jobs in the County.  Three of these 
projects were significant including the acquisition of the former Walkers 
plant in Peterlee by vegan food producer, VBites, led by Heather Mills, 
and will create 300 jobs; Biffa investing £15m in a plant in Seaham to 
reprocess plastic drinks bottles, creating 70 jobs; and one project that 
wishes to remain confidential. 

18 Business Durham has maintained its work on innovation, the North 
East Satellite Applications Centre of Excellence held its annual 
conference “Into The Blue” in March 2019 with 111 attendees.  Other 
events included a “SpacePreneurs” intensive enterprise challenge at 

Page 24



NETPark and a student enterprise two day challenge at Durham 
University.  

19 The first cohort of 8 businesses on the Durham City Incubator (DCI) 
based at Salvus House, completed their 6 month programme in 
June 2019.  They benefitted from a wide range of workshops, 1-2-1 
support, and meeting with investors, attending events from other 
programmes such as Digital Drive and working with each other. The 
8 new businesses have progressed well and collectively raised over 
£120,000 of investment funds during the 6 months.  One of the 
businesses, Plastech Innovation, won two National Awards, SCidea 
2019 and Shell LiveWIRE, and were winners of Durham University 
Blueprint Startup Challenge.  The second DCI cohort started on 8 July 
2019, with 8 new businesses selected from 26 applicants. 

20 Enterprise and outreach activities during the year included the annual 
Future Business Magnates (FBM) competition, which was won by St 
Leonard’s Catholic School, a team which has participated in the 
competition for the past 14 years but has, until this year, never won the 
top prize.  A number of schools have also taken up the ‘FBM Freshers’ 
project which introduces year 7 students to the concepts around 
business start up in an exciting and fun way.  A further highlight of 
Business Durham’s STEM outreach work included Space Camp, where 
Astronaut Dr Michael Foale CBE, delivered a series of talks to pupils 
and the general public, with over 2000 attending over two days in early 
June 2019.   

21 In order to enhance the enterprise and start-up offer in the County, 
Business Durham has applied for ERDF funding for a new project to 
support ambitious business start-ups ‘Durham Ambitious Business 
Starts (DABS) which will commence early in 2020, subject to ERDF 
funding approval.  

Business Growth and Survival 
 

22 Business Durham delivers the Northern Powerhouse Key Account 
Management Programme (NPH KAM) within County Durham on behalf 
of the Department for International Trade. The programme seeks to 
ensure that Foreign Direct Investors (FDIs) are supported to sustain and 
grow in County Durham. Business Durham exceeded its target of 
engaging with 15 FDI companies, actively engaging with 23 companies 
during 2018-19 and supporting 7 projects which will create 73 jobs.  
Business Durham also engages with 31 other FDIs in the County that 
are not part of the NPH KAM programme. 

23 The impact of Brexit on the County’s economy remains uncertain and 
has caused some FDIs to delay potential expansion projects.  Through 

Page 25



its day to day business engagement work, Business Durham is keeping 
in touch with companies to understand their concerns, potential 
implications for their business or sector, and connecting them to 
sources of information or assistance on specific issues through our 
contacts in the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial 
Strategy.  Business Durham has a dedicated ‘Brexit’ slot in its monthly 
business newsletter and directs businesses to the Brexit toolkit on the 
North Eat Growth Hub.  

24 Business Survival Rates 

 

Business Durham supports business survival primarily through the 
Account Management Service. This forms the basis of trusted 
relationships with the business community which enables the early 
identification of problems or issues that can be addressed through the 
wider business support infrastructure. The feedback from the business 
community and Advisory Board is also valuable in identifying gaps in 
provision which informs Business Durham’s EU bidding strategy. 
Currently £41m of EU project funding is planned for County Durham 
businesses which includes a Business Growth Fund, Digital Drive which 
helps businesses benefit from new technology, as well as Business start- 
up support.  

 

Looking forward 
 

25 Commercial challenges facing Business Durham include profitably 
growing the property portfolio and maximising occupancy levels, to 
simplify access for businesses and continue to change private sector 
perceptions of the Public Sector, to continue to build the Business 
Durham brand, to develop a commercial culture for reinvestment in 
economic and social good, and to respond to Brexit and EU bidding 
opportunities before they diminish. 

26 Following the publication of the Government’s Industrial Strategy White 
Paper in November 2017, it was announced in early summer that the 

Page 26



North East would be one of the first areas of the country to develop a 
Local Industrial Strategy (LIS).  This work is being led by the North East 
LEP, which is currently refreshing the region’s Strategic Economic Plan 
in order to prepare the ground for the Local Industrial Strategy.  It is 
likely that future Government funding for economic growth, in particular 
the Shared Prosperity Fund, will be aligned to the LIS, so it is important 
that County Durham partners help to shape and influence the LIS.  
Business Durham is leading the development of an Industrial Strategy 
for County Durham, working closely with Durham University to gather a 
robust and up to date evidence base which will underpin this work. 

Conclusion 

Business Durham continues to deliver considerable economic impact for the 
region.  

Background papers 

• None 

Other useful documents 

• None 

 

Contact: Brian Archer  Tel:  03000 265510 

 Diane Close Tel:  03000 268141 

  

Page 27



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

This report is for information only 

Finance 

Not applicable 

Consultation 

Not applicable  

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

Not applicable  

Human Rights 

Not applicable 

Climate Change 

Not applicable 

Crime and Disorder 

Not applicable 

Staffing 

Not applicable 

Accommodation 

Not applicable 

Risk 

Not applicable 

Procurement 

Not applicable 

Page 28



Business Durham

People | Partnerships | Prosperity

Headline Performance

Brian Archer

Managing Director

7 November 2019

Appendix 2

P
age 29



People | Partnerships | Prosperity

This is Durham

❖ £41m EU projects underway

❖ 7 Inward Investments 

❖ 3866 new jobs

❖ £113m GVA

❖ £8m contracts won

❖ 84% occupancy

❖ £1m operating surplus

P
age 30



People | Partnerships | Prosperity

This is Durham

❖ 40 multinationals invested in 

the county in last three years

❖ Largest share of businesses 

in the North East 20% growth

❖ Lower labour costs compared 

to rest of UK

❖ Skills levels across working 

age population improving

P
age 31



People | Partnerships | Prosperity

Thank YouP
age 32



Business Durham
Annual Report
2018/19

 
James Ramsbotham, NEECC

     It’s all about the
passion, willingness
and the energy
to succeed

Business Durham is supported by:

P
age 33

Martin.Tindle
Text Box
Appendix 3

Martin.Tindle_1
Text Box




Foreword

It’s been an exhilarating year for 
Business Durham and the County.

We have seen the launch of the
£200m Aykley Heads development 
which will deliver 6000 jobs and a 
£400m economic boost for the 
County.  With some £3.4Bn of 
planned investment across the 
region there can be no better 
place to invest, start or grow a 
business than Durham.

Such growth will see 100,000 new jobs in an area that really
is powered by people.  Business Durham has itself grown 
and delivered some extraordinary results over the last year. 

That success is down to the brilliant team we have here
and colleagues across the Council and wider partnership 
who have all played their part in the success story that is 
County Durham.

Thank you for your continued support.

Brian Archer,
Managing Director. 999

Firms Advised

Inward
investment

successes7 84%
Occupancy

Achieved...

£8.1M
New contracts won Jobs Created

3,866

Achieved

Business Durham is supported by:

P
age 34



Highlights of the Year

We launched Durham City Incubator in partnership
with Durham University and New College Durham to
help fledgling companies grow and thrive.

Our Finance Durham Fund has invested £3.36m into
11 County Durham companies to date, leveraging
£5.2m of private sector finance.

Our seven inward investment success included VBites,
which took over the former Walkers factory in Peterlee,
creating up to 350 jobs.

We launched Digital Drive County Durham helping
198 companies make the most of digital technology
since its launch in January 2018. Overall there are
573 businesses registered on the programme.

Anne-Isabelle Daulon, Eleven Arches

     There’s immense power
in the people here to make
things happen

10th anniversary
Tanfield Lea

Business Centre

Business Durham is supported by:

Digital Drive

VBites

DBOP Team

P
age 35



Business Durham is supported by:

NETPark Explorer

NETPark Phase 3

Future Business Magnates

Durham 2sday

Highlights of the Year

We hosted the annual Satellite Applications
Conference “Discover the Possibilities” attended by
over 100 business and industry experts.

The North East Ports testbed was launched to connect
ports with digital businesses to transform services.

We won £1.25m from the Govtech Catalyst fund
to help transform local authority services with
intelligent analysis of data.

A new 1km road was completed at NETPark
opening up 26 acres of development land.

Overall occupancy of our commercial
portfolio increased to 84%.

Richard Kirk, Polyphotonix

     There’s a real appetite
for business and a genuine
desire for success

Evince

“Discover the Possibilities”

Hot Desking - Salvus House

NETPark Development

P
age 36



Business Durham is supported by:

High Force Research

Vivarail
Reviral

  Major Company Milestones

Quorum Development Ltd moved to new offices at
the NETPark’s new Explorer building in Sedgefield as
it continues to grow 20% year on year.

High Force Research, which supports new product
development in the fine chemicals, pharmaceutical,
diagnostics and printed electronics industries, opened
a second Research Laboratory at NETPark in
Sedgefield as the company continues to grow.

Vivarail, the manufacturer of eco-friendly passenger
trains, has accelerated expansion of its plant at the
Spectrum Business Park, Seaham, beating its three
year workforce target in just over a year. The site
has doubled in size and they are committed to
further investment.

NETPark based pioneering biotechnology firm,
ReViral, will start the next phase of clinical trials
of its antiviral drug this year after winning US$55
million from US and European investors.

Quorum Development Ltd

P
age 37



Business Durham is supported by:

Driving Productivity

Business Durham added £113M of GVA
growth to the County’s economy through
the businesses we worked with.

With 300 hectares of development land
Business Durham continues to take a lead
role in shaping the local industrial strategy;
 

Investing in strategic employment sites
and improved connectivity

Delivering innovation support through
commercialisation of knowledge

Strengthening business and
education partnerships

Ensuring County Durham is
a great place to invest, start
and grow a business

5
foundations of 

productivity

Ideas
the world’s most innovative economy

People
good jobs and greater earning power for all

Infrastructure

a major upgrade to the UK’s infrastructure

Business environment 

the best place to start and grow a business

Places 
prosperous communities across the UK 

P
age 38



Business Durham is supported by:

Powered by People

There’s a real sense of partnership in County Durham;
a willingness to help others achieve their goals with
positive, proactive and collaborative networks that
break down barriers, create opportunities and provide
the support businesses need. We have a business
friendly council and Business Durham; a dedicated
economic development organisation for the county
delivering the environment for business and
economic growth.

Community spirit is strong in this part of the world.
Businesses here are rooted in their local communities,
in a symbiotic relationship that provides many
opportunities to support and have a significant
impact on the lives of others.

Learn more at: durhampoweredbypeople.co.uk

P
age 39



Business Durham is supported by:

Durham City Incubator

Successful launch of  Durham City Incubator- an accelerator
programme for entrepreneurs and growing businesses in
County Durham. Delivered in partnership with Durham
University and New College Durham the programme has
got off to a tremendous start delivering;
 
8 high growth businesses launched with over
£100,000 of investment funds raised in 6 months

Plastech Innovation won two National Awards
SCidea 2019 and Shell LiveWIRE

DCI has supported budding entrepreneurs
through various competitions such as Innovate
19 and Blueprint Enterprise Challenge

Sponsored of Entrepreneurs Forum Conference
which provided inspiration and networking
opportunities for DCI founders

P
age 40



Business Durham is supported by:

Find out more

Business Durham,
Salvus House,  Aykley Heads,
Durham  DH1 5TS

t: +44 (0) 3000 261 261
e: enquiries@businessdurham.co.uk
w: www.businessdurham.co.uk
      @_BusinessDurham
     @business-durham
     @businessdurham12

Ed Twiddy, Atom

     The skill set is here
because these are places
where people want to live

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

             

       

 Economy and Enterprise Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  

7 November 2019 

Visit County Durham (VCD) – 

Development & Marketing activity 

   

 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

 Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The report provides members with background information on the 
activity undertaken by Visit County Durham (VCD) to develop and 
promote County Durham as a tourism destination prior to a 
presentation by Michelle Gorman, Managing Director, VCD, 
Regeneration and Local Services. 

Executive summary 

2 Members will recall that previously we have received detail of progress 
made in relation to the recommendations contained in the scrutiny 
review report focusing on the activity undertaken by VCD to develop 
and promote the County as a tourism destination with the last update 
considered by the committee at the meeting on the 5 April 2018.   

3 The committee has received an update on the activity undertaken by 
VCD as part of its 2018/19 work programme.  When considering its 
work programme for 2019/2020 members agreed to include a further 
progress update so that they are kept informed of the various 
development and marketing activity undertaken and the performance 
of VCD. 

4 Arrangements have been made for Michelle Gorman, Managing 
Director, VCD to attend the meeting on the 7 November 2019 to 
deliver a presentation focusing on: 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



• County Durham Visitor Economy 

• Partnership support and industry engagement 

• Destination development 

• Marketing 
 

A copy of the presentation slides are attached as Appendix 2.  

5 It is proposed that the committee will continue to monitor the 
performance of VCD in developing and marketing the county as a 
tourism destination with a further progress report to be included in the 
committee’s 2020/2021 work programme.  

Recommendations 

6 That the Economy and Enterprise OSC consider and comment on the 
information provided in this report and presentation provided at the 
meeting. 

7 That the Economy and Enterprise OSC includes in its work 
programme for 2020/2021 a further progress report detailing the future 
performance of VCD in marketing the county as a tourism destination 
together with examples of marketing undertaken. 

Background 

8 Visit County Durham is the destination management organisation 
(DMO) for County Durham working on behalf of businesses and public 
agencies, we came into being on 1 April 2006. 

9 Our purpose is to provide strategic added value, coordination and 
leadership to tourism activity and the visitor economy in the county for 
public agencies, private sector, local authorities and tourism 
businesses. We deliver the county’s destination management, 
destination marketing and place marketing functions. 

10 Our main activity is destination management. This means influencing 
or delivering directly activities that relate to visitors and the visitor 
economy, including marketing, information services, product 
development, visitor experience, business engagement and workforce 
development. 

11 Many people are involved in delivering a vibrant visitor economy, 
which is why we work in partnership with businesses, stakeholders 
and partners from across the county, in the region, and nationally and 
internationally with Britain’s tourism board VisitEngland/VisitBritain. We 
take a different role in each of our areas of activity depending on need 
and existing arrangements. 

Page 44



12 Our objective is to ensure that the tourism sector performs to its 
maximum capacity and brings economic benefits to the county in the 
form of wealth and job creation. Our broad aims are to attract people 
to the area and to provide visitors with the best possible experience. 

County Durham Visitor Economy  

Performance 

13 Market intelligence is essential in order to accurately inform and shape 
the work of Visit County Durham and our partners, we gather and 
analyse current and relevant intelligence and information to help the 
county’s tourism sector to prosper and grow. 

14 One of the main pieces of research undertaken is the annual economic 
impact assessment STEAM, which approaches the measurement of 
tourism from the bottom up, through its use of local supply side data 
and tourism performance and visitor survey data collection. The latest 
results from 2018 show: 

• 19.71 million people visited Durham in 2018, the same as the 
previous year 

• £913.8m economic impact (visitor spend), up 1.4% on 2017 

• The number of days visitors spent in the destination grew by 0.2% to 
22.3 million visitor days.  

• Overall visitor expenditure stands at £913.84 million, up by 1.4% on 
2017 

• The number of people directly employed in tourism in Durham in 2018 
rose to 9,613 (FTEs). When indirect employment in the supply chain 
is taken into account total employment stands at 11,998, up also by 
2.7%. 

• The number of overnight visitors to Durham rose 4.2% to 1.6 million 
with these visitors spending 4.2 million nights in the destination. These 
visitors spend £388.13 million while in Durham, up by 4% on 2017. 

• Day visitor levels fell by 0.4% to 18.11 million visitors, with expenditure 
levels also down by 0.4% to £525.72 million. 

• 92% of all visits are day visits with these visitors accounting for 58% 
of all expenditure. 

• Average expenditure for overnight visitors is £184.13 per trip while the 
average day visitor spend is £21.52 per trip. 

 

General 

15 The Durham Tourism Management Plan (DTMaP) is the destination’s 
plan which converts local, regional and national market research and 
strategies into a county-based plan to grow the county’s visitor 

Page 45



economy. The plan is for all organisations and individuals in Durham, 
and, where relevant, national bodies to help them understand what is 
being done, what needs to be done and how they can contribute to 
Durham’s success.  

16 Visit County Durham, one of only 11 destinations from around the 
world, was asked to participate in the study as an example of best 
practice and successful destination management. The consultation 
process focussed primarily on the Durham Tourism Management Plan 
but reviewed staff structures, finance, operating model and 
stakeholder engagement. The outcome from the study is a 
recommendation for establishing regional DMO’s in Iceland.  

17 In addition to the Iceland study, Visit County Durham’s operating 
model will be included as a case study in a practical destination 
management handbook for the World Bank. The handbook is intended 
for use by stakeholders in places that are establishing a new 
destination management structure, the model they will use is where 
the DMO works within the framework of a local authority. 

18 In June the Prime Minister announced the UK’s first ever tourism 
sector deal, reaffirming the UK’s global role as a key player in the 
industry. 

19 The new deal aims to revolutionise the way data is used by the sector, 
through the creation of new Tourism Data Hub. The hub will collate 
regularly updated data showing the latest trends and spends, allowing 
businesses to better target overseas visitors. 

20 The deal will also support the creation of an additional 10,000 
apprenticeships for people building their careers in the tourism and 
hospitality sectors. 

21 More than 130,000 new hotel rooms are set to be built across the UK, 
with 75% being built outside of London. £250,000 to improve 
broadband connectivity in conferences centres across the UK for 
business visitors. 

22 Pilot of up to five new Tourism Zones to drive visitor numbers across 
the country. Zones will receive Government support for growing their 
local visitor economy, through initiatives like targeted support for 
product and promotion development, mentoring support to businesses 
and digital skills training. 

23 A regional steering group has been established to develop a North 
East Tourism Zone bid.  Members of the steering group are: North 
East LEP, Visit County Durham, NewcastleGateshead Initiative, LA5 

Page 46



Economic Development representatives, NEXUS (Transport for the 
North), Newcastle Airport. 

Partnership support and industry engagement 

24 We work with c850 core tourism businesses across the county – 
accommodation, attractions and activities, plus an additional 500 plus 
businesses that contribute and are integral to the visitor economy, 
these include transport, cafes, restaurants, retail and suppliers of 
services to the tourism industry. 

25 We engage with and support partners via several channels. Our 
weekly e-newsletter the Wednesday Grapevine is sent to over 1,200 
contacts. Tailored training sessions are held throughout the year; in 
2019/20 sessions included astro-tourism, weddings, social media, 
YouTube and informal drop-in days. We have an annual programme of 
industry events which includes informal networking and a spring and 
autumn conference. 

26 The annual garden party took place on 10th July with over 120 people 
in attendance at Hallgarth Manor Hotel at Pittington. Brian Harvey from 
Ushaw was announced as the winner of Durham’s Tourism Superstar 
2019.  

27 In addition to our general partnership scheme we offer a Strategic 
Partnership service for key businesses to shape and influence 
destination development and marketing activity for Durham. We work 
in partnership to develop and deliver domestic and overseas marketing 
activities, monthly and annual themed campaigns. 

28 Following the success of last year’s UKinbound international 
familiarisation trip, we arranged for an AGTO (Association of Group 
Travel Organisers) travel showcase for the domestic market. The trip 
took place 13th – 15th September, the group visited The Auckland 
Project and had a guided tour of Durham Cathedral and Castle.  

29 Visit County Durham continues to work in partnership with transport 
organisations who represent key points of entry in to the North East, or 
move visitors around the county including the Port of Tyne, Newcastle 
and Durham Tees Valley Airports, LNER and TransPennine Express, 
Go NorthEast and Arriva.  

Destination development 

30 In the latest Government spending review statement (September 
2019) DCMS confirmed top line figures for VisitBritain/VisitEngland’s 
funding settlement for 2020/21, which is an inflationary increase on 
core budget in line with other arms’ length bodies, and an additional 

Page 47



£5.45m has been allocated for the Discover England Fund.  More 
details on the Fund will be available later this year. 

31 All large-scale £1m plus Discover England Fund projects are in the 
final stages of delivery with most seeking additional partner 
contributions to continue with trade engagement and promotion and to 
bridge the funding gap between the end of September 2019 and April 
2020. 

32 Visit County Durham expanded its portfolio of projects and is now a 
partner destination in 4 x large scale £1.5m projects and 2 smaller 
£250k projects.  

• The Explorers Route (A1) – targeting Germany 
https://www.visitlondon.com/englandoriginals/  

• England Originals (15 x heritage cities) – USA 
https://www.theexplorersroad.co.uk/  

• Manchester Gateway (excursions from the airport) – USA 
https://www.visitmanchester.com/things-to-see-and-
do/gateway-to-the-north/explore-the-north 

• Discover England’s Coast – targeting Germany and the 
Netherlands – https://www.englandscoast.com/en 

• Faith Tourism: Explore Churches – USA 
https://www.explorechurches.org/experiences 

• Northern World Heritage Sites – Ireland and USA 
https://www.golakes.co.uk/northern-world-heritage/englands-
world-heritage-itineraries.aspx 
 

33 The aims of the Discover England Fund projects are to increase the 
volume of international visitors by creating itineraries that showcase 
the city and county or excursions that open up the North of England. 

34 2020 has been designated a Year of Pilgrimage in the county. We are 
working in partnership with Durham Cathedral, churches, the heritage 
and culture sectors to co-ordinate a programme of activity, events and 
exhibitions to explore the concept of pilgrimage and what it means to 
people today. 

35 Work has started to develop 6 x pilgrimage routes: Northern Saints 
Trails, led by Visit County Durham, the routes will be themed to draw 
together key aspects that link the saints with artefacts, heritage sites 
and buildings, and the stories of the saints. Northernsaints.com  

36 The trails will be launched in spring 2020 and will be one main 
elements of the Year of Pilgrimage. The Bishop of Durham has 
pledged to walk each of the new routes and is encouraging people to 
join him on his journey. 

Page 48

https://www.visitlondon.com/englandoriginals/
https://www.visitlondon.com/englandoriginals/
https://www.theexplorersroad.co.uk/
https://www.theexplorersroad.co.uk/
https://www.visitmanchester.com/things-to-see-and-do/gateway-to-the-north/explore-the-north
https://www.visitmanchester.com/things-to-see-and-do/gateway-to-the-north/explore-the-north
https://www.visitmanchester.com/things-to-see-and-do/gateway-to-the-north/explore-the-north
https://www.visitmanchester.com/things-to-see-and-do/gateway-to-the-north/explore-the-north
https://www.englandscoast.com/en
https://www.englandscoast.com/en
https://www.explorechurches.org/experiences
https://www.explorechurches.org/experiences
https://www.golakes.co.uk/northern-world-heritage/englands-world-heritage-itineraries.aspx
https://www.golakes.co.uk/northern-world-heritage/englands-world-heritage-itineraries.aspx
https://www.golakes.co.uk/northern-world-heritage/englands-world-heritage-itineraries.aspx
https://www.golakes.co.uk/northern-world-heritage/englands-world-heritage-itineraries.aspx
http://www.northernsaints.com/
http://www.northernsaints.com/


37 Work continues with Durham Police, Durham Prison, Durham Courts, 
Durham University, Beamish Museums, Durham Cathedral and DCC 
Archives and Heritage team to explore the potential of a Crime and 
Punishment theme for the city.  

38 Crime and Punishment themed walks were held as part of Heritage 
Open Days. The two events sold out and a third event has been 
organised for those who were on a waiting list. 

39 VCD, in partnership with Durham Community Action and Durham 
Farmers Market organised an October Taste Durham Veg Cities 
takeover which saw chef demo’s by New College Durham and East 
Durham College students of locally produced vegetable-based dishes 
in Durham Market Place. The aim of the takeover was to raise the 
profile of local produce and encourage people to eat more veg. 

40 30,000 Durham Church Trail maps have now been distributed around 
the city. This project has increased product by 1/3 with more opening 
hours and increased facilities. The map received funding from Durham 
City AAP. Coverage of the project has been achieved in several 
outlets including the Northern Echo and a feature on Premier Radio.  

41 Visit County Durham offers support, advice and guidance for potential 
investors in the county’s tourism product and submits formal 
responses to tourism planning applications. Tailored support is 
provided for key capital developments. 

42 As part of the Accommodation Study programme, 2 workshops were 
held in May, designed to provide supporting information in relation to 
those wishing to develop or expand in the accommodation sector.  

43 The workshops covered key trends, market gaps, opportunities and 
planning information. Both days were full, with 33 businesses 
attending. Alongside this, 77 businesses were represented at the 
spring conference and 11 at the glamping workshop, taking the total 
number of businesses incentivised to develop accommodation to 120.  

44 A meeting has taken place with the National Trust to discuss ways in 
which we can increase the Trust’s profile and portfolio in the county. 

Marketing  

45 Three international matches were held at The Riverside as part of the 
ICC Cricket World Cup. With an estimated 70,000 people from around 
the world visiting Durham the event is being hailed a major success for 
the area.  

Page 49



46 The fanzone, held in Market Place and Millennium Place, attracted an 
estimated 27,000 visitors over the weekend of 28th June. Feedback 
from the English Cricket Board CWC team has been overwhelmingly 
positive, praising Durham’s approach to promotion, communication 
and collaboration between host city team and the venue.  

47 July saw a spike in Equivalent Advertising Value (EAV) PR value of 
over £2.3m with an estimated reach in excess of 80m readers – the 
Rhianna effect.  

48 #Durham19 – the county’s Year of Culture. 2019 is designated as a 
Year of Culture in Durham, to celebrate an unprecedented programme 
of events, festivals, anniversaries and openings taking place across 
the county.  

49 The #Durham19 campaign, launched by Visit County Durham in 
partnership with Durham County Council, County Durham Cultural 
Partnership and partners from across the county, uses the Year of 
Culture to attract overnight visitors, increase day visits and event 
footfall, and engage with local communities.  

50 Durham’s Year of Culture was officially launched at Durham Town Hall 
in March with over 100 in attendance and a celebration event at the 
House of Commons in London on 30th April was well attended.  

51 Activity is still ongoing with Events Guides distributed throughout the 
region, advertising has included the Evening Standard, Kings Cross on 
the digital billboard and at Westminster Tube Station coinciding with 
the Durham County Council House of Commons reception in April. 
Digital screens in the city, at the Gala, libraries and Customer Access 
Points 

52 A school drawing competition received over 170 entries, with an online 
gallery now live on the #Durham19 site. 

53 Interim results show: 

• 13,583 unique visits to the #Durham19 website, viewing over 
41,000 pages. Top 5 pages: 1. Home page, 2. Fetes and fairs, 
3. Agricultural shows, 4. Blog – things to look forward to in 
2019, 5. Festivals 

• 2,676 events listed on the site to date, with an average of 25 – 
30 community focussed events each month. 

• Views of the #Durham19 video to date 42,000 

Page 50



54 Visit County Durham continues to raise the profile of the county as a 
destination for outdoors and heritage, with the delivery of two 
successful national marketing campaigns.  

55 The annual history campaign is currently live and features online 
advertising with the Evening Standard and Independent, partner 
videos, social media and influencer marketing. 

56 VCD has sponsored a Lumiere Durham app, the aim of the app is to 
encourage visitors to the festival to see and do more and to raise the 
profile of the rest of the county. Featured itineraries will include 2 x city 
and 2 x county, with a family and culture focus. Special offers will 
encourage visitors to spend more. 

Challenges and opportunities 

57 The split of overnight visitors to day visitors remained the same in 
2018 with day visitors accounting for 92% of all visits to the county and 
overnight visitors at 8%. 

58 Despite our marketing efforts targeted to audiences external to the 
county several factors influence the high proportion of day visitors 
compared to overnight, including: 

• lack of visitor accommodation in key tourism areas 

• lack of visitor product, particularly targeted at the family 
market 

• strong neighbouring destination brands (Yorkshire, Cumbria, 
Scotland) 

59 Developments are underway which will help plug some of the gaps 
and improve the visitor offer, these include hotel, retail and leisure 
developments in Durham City. Developments in Bishop Auckland. 
Accommodation development enquiries in Seaham. Hotel 
developments in Stanley and Consett. Smaller scale glamping and 
self-catering developments in various locations across the county. 
Strong festivals and events programme. 

Conclusions  

60 Overview and Scrutiny members will be aware of work undertaken by 
VCD, the various forms of marketing undertaken and the performance 
of VCD in marketing the county as a tourism destination.  

61 It is intended that the committee will continue to monitor the 
performance of VCD in marketing the county as a tourism destination 

Page 51



and it is suggested that the committee includes a further progress 
update in its work programme for 2020/2021. 

 

Background papers 

• Durham Tourism Management Plan 2016-2020 

• STEAM Economic Impact Report 2018 

 

Other useful documents 

• None 

 

Contact: Michelle Gorman Tel:  03000 261 221 

   

 Diane Close Tel:  03000 268 141 

  

Page 52



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

Not applicable  

Finance 

Not applicable 

Consultation 

Not applicable 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

Not applicable  

Human Rights 

Not applicable 

Climate Change 

Not applicable 

Crime and Disorder 

Not applicable 

Staffing 

Not applicable 

Accommodation 

Not applicable 

Risk 

Not applicable 

Procurement 

Not applicable  
 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Visit County Durham
Tourism Development & Marketing 
Economy & Enterprise OSC

Michelle Gorman, Managing Director

P
age 55



2018 national context: challenging year 

• February 2018, cold wave Beast from the East

• Football World Cup – 14 June to 15 July 2018

• Heatwave summer – June, July, August

2018 local context

• 24 new accommodation options, additional 1,268 bed spaces

• Auckland Tower open

• New tourism product via Discover England Fund projects  

• VCD marketing initiatives – stay a little longer, short breaks 
campaign, online itineraries

• Better joining up, collaboration and promotion of tourism offer

Destination performance 2018P
age 56



Economic value

• Economic value £914 million, up by 1.4% on 2017

• Food and drink, recreation and indirect spend main areas of 
expenditure

Jobs

• 9,613 directly employed in tourism

• 2,385 indirectly employed in the visitor economy

• Total – 11,998, up by 2.7% on 2017

Vale of Durham – main visitor product

Destination performance
(STEAM Report 2018)

P
age 57



Our visitors

• 9.71m visitors in 2018, same as 2017

• 1.6m overnight visitors per annum, spend  = £388m

• 18.1m day visitors per annum, spend = £526m

• 92% day visitors, 8% staying visitors

• Average expenditure for overnight visitors is £184.13 per trip 

• Average day visitor spend is £21.52 per trip

Destination performance
(STEAM Report 2018)

P
age 58



• Durham Tourism Management Plan 2016-2020
• November consultation for 2021-2025 (DTMaP)
• International recognition of best practice: 

Icelandic Tourist Board, World Bank
• National recognition of best practice: 

Visit Cambridgeshire, Chichester, 
Wester Ross Biosphere

• Community consultation:
Leeds Beckett University
York Business School
North Pennines AONB
Anna Pollock – global speaker

Strategic destination management

P
age 59



• Tourism Sector Deal announced 28 June 2019

• https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tourism-sector-
deal

• Overarching objective is for UK to remain globally competitive as 
world leader in international tourism

• 10th sector deal aligns to the five pillars of the Industrial Strategy

• Sets out how government and industry will work in partnership to 
boost productivity, develop the skills of the UK workforce and 
support destinations to enhance their visitor offer

• Includes plan for up to five Tourism Zones.

Tourism Sector DealP
age 60

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/tourism-sector-deal


Tourism Sector Deal – 5 Pillars of the 
Industrial Strategy

P
age 61



• 850 core tourism business + 500 secondary visitor economy 
businesses

• Wednesday Grapevine weekly e-newsletter to c1,200 contacts

• Tailored training – social media, YouTube, golf, weddings, group 
travel, etc.

• Industry events – conferences & networking

• Partnership approach to encourage collaborative working for the 
benefit of the destination and businesses 

Partnership support & industry 
engagement

P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



• Delivering World Class Product – The Discover England Fund

• Visit County Durham partner in 4 x large scale bids and 2 smaller 
projects

• Projects cover all areas of the county

• Projects focus on history, heritage and outdoors

• £5.4 million for Discover England Fund from April 2020

Destination development – national 
partnerships

P
age 65



The Northern Saints Trails Project

• Position and raise awareness of North East England as the ‘Christian 

Crossroads of the British Isles’ 

• Portray the region’s Saints and their stories against a backdrop of:

- Visitor attractions

- Cultural and heritage experiences

- Landscapes

- Places to eat and drink

- Visitor accommodation

- North East destinations – market towns, villages and cities

• Project group comprises a broad regional partnership of local 

authorities, Destination Management Organisations, Diocese, landscape 

partnerships and visitor attractions.

P
age 66



P
age 67



#Pilgrimage2020P
age 68



A pilgrimage is a journey with purpose & significance.

“Pilgrimage is a concept as old as humanity itself. Human beings, 

across cultural and religious boundaries, historical and economical 

spectrums, regardless of race or gender, have been taking pilgrimages 

from time immemorial.”

• What does it mean to be a pilgrim today?

• What would motivate you to make a pilgrimage?

Pilgrimage 2020

P
age 69



- Christian heritage / religious heritage

- Regional arts, culture, heritage, history

- Spirituality, health, wellbeing, peace, tranquillity

- The great outdoors, landscape and walking trails

- Exploration and family ‘days out’

- Sport, food, ancestral, sabbatical, travel, personal significance –

birthdays or a passion eg: music, poetry, art

Pilgrimage themes:

P
age 70



• Work in partnership with strategic partners and tourism businesses

• Two major annual campaigns:

- Heritage and history

- Outdoor and landscapes

• Main aims:

- raise the national profile & appeal of the county 

- encourage overnight stays – stay longer and spend more

- raise shoulder season occupancy

- raise awareness of a distinctive Durham experiences

Destination Marketing

P
age 71



P
age 72



• Revised target for the value of the visitor economy – £1 billion by 
the end of 2020

• Festivals and events contribute to a higher national and 
international profile for Durham

• Provide reasons to visit now, extend length of stay, address 
seasonality 

• Cultural and sporting offer link to health & wellbeing agenda

• Increase the consumption of culture, arts and heritage tourism 
experiences by residents and visitors 

• Cultural legacy left for the county which can be enjoyed by 
residents and visitors, long after 2019

Year of Culture Aims

P
age 73



ICC Cricket World CupP
age 74



P
age 75



• UK’s largest light festival

• Transforms Durham City into a magical open-air art gallery

• Durham celebrates a decade of Lumiere in 2019

• 240,000 visitors in 2017

• Highlights from the installations of the past ten years will be 
brought back as part of the celebration of a creative event that has 
quickly become synonymous with Durham

• International reputation

Lumiere Durham 2019P
age 76



• Over 13,500 unique web visits, viewing over 41,000 pages

• Over 2,600 events listed on the site 

• 25-30 community events per month

• Top pages: 1. Home page, 2. Fetes and fairs, 3. Agricultural shows, 
4. Blog, 5. Festivals

• #Durham19 video - over 42,000 views to date

• Survey April 2019:

- 23% of respondents had seen #Durham19 activity 
and were influenced to visit more than one event

- A further 17% were influenced to visit one event

#Durham19 interim results

P
age 77



History campaign – Summer/Autumn 
2019

P
age 78



Outdoor campaign – Autumn/Winter 
2018/19

P
age 79



Thank you

P
age 80



 

             

 Economy and Enterprise Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee  

7 November 2019 

Economy and Enterprise OSC Scrutiny 
Review - Support provided to the retail sector 
by Durham County Council 
 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services 

Electoral division(s) affected: 

Countywide 

Purpose of the Report 

1 The report provides members with an update on the progress made in 
relation to the recommendations contained within the Economy and 
Enterprise OSC Scrutiny review report of support provided to the retail 
sector by Durham County Council (DCC). 

 
Executive summary 
 
2 At the meeting of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee held on 2 November 2017 members agreed the terms of 
reference for the review with the aim of investigating and 
understanding how DCC works with key partners including the Area 
Action Partnerships (AAPs) to support the retail sector in County 
Durham.  The review would also identify any gaps in support and 
examine any actions by DCC and partners to address these gaps. It 
was agreed that the review would: 

• Examine and understand DCC’s responsibilities for regeneration, 
economic development and planning with a specific focus on the 
retail sector. 

• Examine the retail sector nationally, regionally and locally identifying 
challenges for the retail sector in County Durham.  

• Consider the role of DCC and key partners including AAPs in 
developing, promoting and delivering retail support in the county.  

• Examine with Commercial Letting Agents in the county the current 
process for marketing retail premises, the information provided by 
DCC to agents on the retail offer and any issues/challenges with the 
current process. 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 9



• Identify any gaps in current retail support in the county and examine 
any actions identified by DCC and partners to tackle gaps in 
provision. 

• Examine and understand the Durham BID. 
 
3 Overall the review found that there are many good projects and 

initiatives taking place to support the retail offer in the county’s town 
centres and identified a number of areas where additional work can be 
done.  Key improvement areas identified included improving IT 
connectivity, signage, communication of events and general support to 
retail businesses.   

 
4 The report was considered by Cabinet at the meeting on the 16 

January 2019.  At that meeting Cabinet were asked to agree the 
recommendations contained within the review report which included a 
recommendation for a six-monthly update on the progress against the 
recommendations.  In addition, the report was shared with the County 
Durham Economic Partnership on the 26 April 2019. 

 
5 A progress update is attached as Appendix 2 for members 

consideration and arrangements have been made for relevant officers 
involved in the review to attend the meeting on the 7 November to 
answer any resulting questions. 

Recommendations 

6 Members of the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are asked to consider and comment upon the progress 
made in relation to the recommendations contained in the Scrutiny 
review report. 

7 That the Economy and Enterprise Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
receive a further report detailing progress made against the 
recommendations contained in the scrutiny review report at a future 
meeting. 

Background 

8 The review commenced in January 2018 and concluded in September 
2018 and consisted of 11 meetings and 4 visits to various town centres 
in the county, providing an opportunity for members of the review 
group to meet with retailers and developers to discuss any challenges 
or issues and identify the support they required. 

9 The review made the following 10 recommendations:  

Recommendation 1 
 

Page 82



• That DCC continues to further develop the County Durham town centre 
surveys to include detail of DCC owned buildings, hotel and bed and 
breakfast provision and tourist attractions in relation to the 13 largest 
centres, 2 district centres and 3 retail parks in the county. 

 

• That a member’s seminar is arranged to discuss and consider the 
information provided in the County Durham Town Centre Survey 2018.  

 
Recommendation 2 
 

• That the ReaL Service Grouping continue to monitor robustly the 
number of vacant retail units in our town centres and consider 
introducing an appropriate indicator to monitor performance on a 
quarterly basis.  

 
Recommendation 3 
 

• DCC ensures that as a result of the Utilities, Telecommunications and 
Other Broadcast Infrastructure Policy within the emerging County 
Durham Plan, all new build developments or renovations (both 
residential and commercial) are served by high speed and reliable 
broadband connection.  

 

• That DCC continues to work with broadband providers to ensure that 
residents and businesses throughout County Durham have the 
opportunity to access superfast broadband provision currently 
available. 

 

• That pending a successful evaluation of the Bishop Auckland and 
Stanley pilot schemes to provide free public Wi-Fi, the scheme is rolled 
out where appropriate to other town centres in the county.   

 
Recommendation 4 
 

• That as part of the ‘second round’ programme of masterplans, a  
signage audit is undertaken across all 12 large town centres in the 
county with a view to making improvements to town centre signage. 

 
Recommendation 5 
 

• In order to encourage future events in town centres DCC rolls out the 
‘Managing Our Town Centres’ project across the county and promotes 
the project with relevant DCC colleagues and partners including the 
AAPs. 

 

• That DCC’s Communications and Marketing Team in conjunction with 
partners including Town and Parish Councils and AAPs, actively promote 
community events to be held in town centres ensuring awareness amongst 

Page 83



local businesses and subject to appropriate regulations regarding the 
promotion of third party events being satisfied. 

 
Recommendation 6 
 

• That a link to DCC’s web pages providing detail of DCC’s business 
support service and the Targeted Business Support scheme is sent to 
all commercial letting agents operating in County Durham. 

 

• That DCC’s web pages providing detail of the business support service 
and the Targeted Business Support scheme are in a clear format and 
easily accessible when using search engines to access information on 
potential grant funding currently available.  

 
Recommendation 7 
 

• That DCC continues to develop training opportunities for the retail 
sector which are informed by local retailers, with a focus on digital 
marketing, window display/dressing and good customer service and 
that the training offer is promoted by various key partners in the county 
to SMEs and micro-businesses. 

 
Recommendation 8 
 

• That the Business Rates Team and the Enforcement Team re-target all 
businesses eligible for Small Business Rate Relief who have not 
applied to date, publicise all forms of business rate relief available and 
the associated eligibility criteria via the DCC website, Business Durham 
and the Area Action Partnerships  

 

Recommendation 9 
 

• That DCC considers introducing to some DCC town centre car parks 
alternative payment options such as contactless payments. 

 

• That DCC reconsiders when car parking initiatives such as ‘Free after 
3’ are offered to ensure that any initiative is of optimum benefit to 
retailers and limits the length of free car parking in town centres to allow 
availability/turnover of spaces working with local stakeholders including 
DCC Councillors. 

 

• That car parking provision in the 12 large town centres is an area of 
focus in the development of the ‘second round’ programme of 
masterplans.  

 
 
 

Page 84



Recommendation 10 
 

• That information in respect of AAP town centre projects are shared 
across the AAP network. 

 

• That the review group receives detail of progress made in relation to 
ongoing AAP projects focusing on supporting town centres and 
business.  

 
10 The report including the recommendations were considered by 

Cabinet in January 2019 and as part of the review process the 
committee will receive regular progress updates in relation to the 
recommendations contained in the report. 

Conclusions  

11 Members will be aware of progress made in relation to the 
recommendations contained in the review report.  

Background papers 

Scrutiny Review Report - Support provided to the retail sector by DCC - 
2018. 

Other useful documents 

• None 

 

Contact: Stephen Gwillym Tel: 03000 268140 

   

 Diane Close Tel: 03000 268 141 

 

  

Page 85



Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications 

Not applicable  

Finance 

Not applicable 

Consultation 

Not applicable 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty 

All scrutiny reviews are subject to an equality impact assessment. 

Human Rights 

Not applicable 

Climate Change 

Not applicable 

Crime and Disorder 

Not applicable 

Staffing 

Not applicable 

Accommodation 

Not applicable 

Risk 

Not applicable 

Procurement 

Not applicable  
 

Page 86



DB336/SCRUTINY 

                                                                                                                                                                                                   Appendix 2 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORKING GROUP REPORT – SUPPORT PROVIDED TO THE RETAIL SECTOR BY DURHAM COUNTY 
COUNCIL CONSIDERED BY CABINET IN JANUARY 2018. 
 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
1)  

(a) (a) That DCC continues to further develop the  
(b) County Durham Town Centre Surveys to 
(c) include detail of DCC owned buildings, hotel   

and bed and breakfast provision and tourist 
attractions in relation to the to the 13 largest 
centres, 2 district centres and 3 retail parks. 

(d)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(b) That a member’s seminar is arranged to discuss 
and consider the information provided in the 
County Durham Town Centre Survey 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The town centre surveys have been completed for 
2019. We are working on including a field on the Story 
Maps where the DCC owned building can be identified. 
Interrogation of the Story Maps allows an analysis of 
hotel and bed and breakfast provision. This can be 
carried out on a centre by centre basis on request. 
 
Stanley AAP and our County Cllrs have supported 
Love Beamish & Stanley that promotes local 
shops/businesses, hotels, restaurants, leisure facilities 
and more; https://www.lovebeamishandstanley.co.uk/ 
They have also produced a number of excellent videos 
showcasing the above outlets. 
 
 
 
 
 
This was undertaken in June 2019 where James Cook 
& Bryn Morris Hale did an overview on national retail 
and town centre trends and how these relate to issues 
within County Durham. James and Bryn can carry out 
this exercise again in terms of the 2019 data. 

 
Development 

& Housing 
Service 

 
 
 
 
 

Love Beamish 
and Stanley 
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development 
& Housing 

Service 

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

P
age 87



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

2). That the ReaL Service Grouping continue to monitor 
robustly the number of vacant retail units in our town 
centres and consider introducing an appropriate 
indicator to monitor performance on a quarterly basis.  
 
 

 

 . 
 
 
 
 
 

Town centre surveys continue to take place on an 
annual basis.  Due to the significant time demands to 
undertake these surveys, at this time it is not practical 
to undertake detailed surveys on a quarterly basis.  On 
an informal basis, officers do take note of changes in 
town centres during the year as part of project delivery 
within the town and village centres. 

Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Annual 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
3)  
 

(a) DCC ensures that as a result of the Utilities, 
Telecommunications and Other Broadcast 
Infrastructure Policy within the emerging County 
Durham Plan, all new build developments or 
renovations (both residential and commercial) are 
served by high speed and reliable broadband 
connection.  

 
(b) That DCC continues to work with broadband 

providers to ensure that residents and businesses 
throughout County Durham have the opportunity 
to access superfast broadband provision currently 
available. 

 

 
 
Policy 28 of the County Durham Plan seeks to require 
developers to include full fibre access provision to new 
residential or commercial development. This policy is 
currently subject to examination, but subject to the 
planning inspectors support will be adopted and used 
to assess planning applications 
 
 
 
A Public Consultation to determine and validate the 
Intervention Area for the Durham County Council 
procurement for Contract 3 of the Digital Durham 
programme closed on 12 July 2019.  
 

  
Development & 
Housing Service  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Digital and 
Customer 
Services 

 
Resources 

 

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 

P
age 88



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Public Consultation followed an Open Market 
Review (OMR) with the telecoms market whereby 
suppliers responded with information on their existing 
infrastructure and commercial plans for the 
programme area in the next three years. 
 
Following this process, the Intervention Area which is 
eligible for public subsidy has been determined – 
these areas are also classified as ‘White’ areas.  The 
final State Aid maps for Next Generation Access 
(NGA) Broadband and Basic Broadband will 
imminently be made available via the DCC website. 
 
The Digital Durham programme intends to launch a 
public procurement to secure NGA network solutions 
to serve the identified Intervention Area. The three 
local authorities expected to benefit from this 
procurement are Durham County Council, Gateshead 
Council and Sunderland City Council. 
 
As part of the process, Digital Durham has engaged 
with several broadband suppliers to understand and 
encourage future commercial plans, and to gauge 
interest in bidding for the contract. 
 
An announcement on the successful supplier(s) is 
estimated to be made by April 2020, with planning and 
delivery starting thereafter.  
 
Further to this, numerous teams within DCC, including 
Highways, Planning, Legal and Digital Durham, 
continue to work closely with Virgin Media to help 
support the rollout of Project Lightening.  
 
The rollout to Shildon is complete; Leadgate, Consett 
and Bishop Auckland are all ongoing. Other County 
Durham areas are also under consideration.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 89



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
(c) That pending a successful evaluation of the 

Bishop Auckland and Stanley pilot schemes to 
provide free public Wi-Fi, the scheme is rolled out 
where appropriate to other town centres in the 
county.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Quarterly review meetings are scheduled, as well as 
adhoc meetings as and when required with the 
relevant teams to aid collaborative working. 
 
 
c) Pilot study is just being launched.  Funding to 
support roll out to other town centres has been 
allocated through the Towns and Villages Programme 
as part of the Digital High Street project.  Engagement 
with local Area Action Partnerships is scheduled and 
three further town technical surveys planned to allow 
detailed design and costing of phase one schemes. 
 
Initial discussions have taken place with Teesdale 
Action Partnership, Teesdale Elected Members and 
colleagues within ReaL to scope the feasibility of a 
financial contribution to a free public access Wi-Fi 
scheme in Barnard Castle. Feasibility work is taking 
place in November and costs will be established from 
this work. Pending cost and the successful evaluation 
of the scheme in other areas an Area Budget and 
Neighbourhood Budget contribution may be made 
during the 2020/21 financial year. 
 
The Smart Stanley Wi-Fi project is still to be installed 
and launched. 
 

 
 
 
 

Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 
 

AAP 

 
 
 
 
 

2020/21 
 
 
 

2020/21 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
4) That as part of the ‘second round’ programme of 
masterplans, a signage audit is undertaken across all  
12 large town centres in the county with a view to 
making improvements to town centre signage. 
 

4) Signage audits are incorporated within wider 
Accessibility Audits ensuring town and village centres 
are fully accessible to road users and pedestrians. 
These audits will be undertaken when the masterplans 
are being prepared. 
 
 

Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 90



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 

 

 

 

 

 
City Centre signage has been raised at Durham AAPs 
‘Improving our Villages and City’ Task Group.  Recent 
developments in the city have meant that signage in 
the city is now out of date.  ReaL have been part of the 
discussions and are aware of the need for improved 
signage in the city.  Developments are ongoing so 
further signage updates will be needed as will an idea 
of timescale. 
 

ReaL/Durham  
AAP 

Emerging 
 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
5)  
(a) In order to encourage future events in town 

centres DCC rolls out the ‘Managing Our Town 
Centres’ project across the county, and promotes 
the project with relevant DCC colleagues and 
partners including the AAPs. 

 
 
 
 
 
(b) That DCC’s Communications and Marketing 

Team in conjunction with partners including Town 
and Parish Councils and AAPs, actively promote 
community events to be held in town centres 
ensuring awareness amongst local businesses 
and subject to appropriate regulations regarding 
the promotion of third party events being satisfied. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
a) Internal discussions taken place and draft report 
completed – Currently under consideration by 
Corporate Property and Land Service.  Wider 
programme of events are scheduled under the town 
and village centres programme through the town 
centre vitality project which has already supported the 
Seaham Food Festival and the Heritage and Culture 
Programme in Bishop Auckland and will feed into the 
wider development programme. 
 
As part of #Durham19, the Year of Culture, 
communities were encouraged to upload their local 
events to the Visit County Durham website for 
#Durham19. This was agreed and encouraged by 
DCC’s Year of Culture Steering Group, which included 
DCC, Visit County Durham and representatives from 
all Area Action Partnerships (AAPs). AAP reps 
regularly promoted this to their AAPs. The website 
was the call to action on all communications to 
promote the Year of Culture. 
https://www.visitcountydurham.org/Durham19 
https://www.thisisdurham.com/19 
 

  
 
Corporate 
Property and 
Land 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Communications 
and Marketing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 91

https://www.visitcountydurham.org/Durham19
https://www.visitcountydurham.org/Durham19
https://www.thisisdurham.com/19
https://www.thisisdurham.com/19


DB336/SCRUTINY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 

The Year of Culture was launched at an event on 20 
March, with media invited to attend. The Council and 
Visit County Durham also promoted the event, website 
and Year of Culture across their channels, including 
films, social media, website, Durham County News 
and a number of paid for advertorials in local media.  
 
Local events are also invited and where possible 
included in the What’s On pages of Durham County 
News and in DCC’s Summer Guide. 
 
Quarterly events guides were produced during 2019 
and circulated across the county detailing events 
taking place over the next three months. 
 
A toolkit was also developed for organisers of 
community events to help them promote their events 
as part of the Year of Culture.   
 
This is being reviewed for 2020 with regards to the 
Year of Pilgrimage.  
 
A new Towns and Villages Task Group has been set 
up which involves promoting developments across the 
county. Key cultural/community events will be involved 
in promoting DCC’s towns and villages opportunities to 
utilise town centre WIFI to promote forthcoming events 
are also being explored. 
 
When information is available and they have been 
made aware of it, Durham AAP has distributed 
information via email, newsletters and social media.  
They work closely with the Durham BID, who put on 
events and have been able to promote them 
effectively. 
 
Stanley AAP has promoted Town Centre events that 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stanley AAP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

P
age 92



DB336/SCRUTINY 

have been organised and led by Stanley Town Council 
 
The Chester-le-Street & District AAP played a 
significant role in planning for when the Cricket World 
Cup fixtures were played at the Riverside Ground, 
particularly around business engagement which the 
AAP undertook to ensure that businesses were fully 
briefed about the world cup so that they could benefit 
from the 40,000 visitors to the town during the three 
fixtures. The AAP also contributed towards 
ChesterFest – a community festival delivered by 
Durham County Cricket Club Foundation. The aim of 
the festival was to celebrate of the Cricket World Cup 
with fun free activities for the community as it was 
recognised by the AAP that it was important that the 
wider community had a strong association with the 
Cricket World Cup even if they weren't attending any 
of the matches. Local businesses were featured at the 
event as well as local community and voluntary based 
groups. 
 
 

 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
6)  
 

(a) That a link to DCC’s web pages providing detail of 
DCC’s business support service and the Targeted 
Business Support scheme is sent to all  
commercial letting agents operating in County 
Durham. 

 
 
 
 
(b) That DCC’s web pages providing detail of the 

business support service and the Targeted 

. 
 
 
a) Links and information sent to known commercial 
letting agents July 2019.  Positive discussions 
followed. 
 
TBS would be something that AAPs are able to 
promote in the future though our own marketing and 
comms activities, linking to our e-bulletins and 
facebook pages. 
 
b) Meeting with Multimedia Officer taken place to 

 
 
 

Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 

AAPs 
 
 
 
 

Development 

 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

P
age 93



DB336/SCRUTINY 

Business Support scheme are in a clear format 
and easily accessible when using search engines 
to access information on potential grant funding 
currently available.  

 
 

consider options August 2019.  Some interim changes 
make funding opportunities more prominent.  
 
Restructure of CED website underway that will include 
clearer information alongside stronger focus on 
opportunities and activities under the Town and 
Villages Programme. 

and Housing 
Service/Comms 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
7).That DCC continues to develop training opportunities 
for the retail sector which are informed by local 
retailers, with a focus on digital marketing, window 
display/dressing and good customer service and that 
the training offer is promoted by various key partners in 
the county to SMEs and micro-businesses. 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Three training programmes developed and advertised 
to local businesses during 2019 
 
1 x Digital Marketing for Business (Bishop Auckland 
and Stanley  linked to public wifi project) 27th March 
(only two in attendance) 
1 x half day Customer Service Training session 
organised for Consett 14th June prior to Cycle Event – 
had to cancel due to lack of take up 
1 x half day Customer Service Training Session 
organised for Chester le Street prior to Cricket World 
Cup 13th June – had to cancel due to lack of take up. 
Despite training offered free of charge and delivered 
as short courses before/after trading hours, business 
take up limited so far. 
 
Further E retailing courses to be offered to businesses 
linked to the roll out of town centre WIFI/Digital High 
Street. 
 
Smart Stanley will have a digital training element built 
into it for local businesses. 
 
Chester-le-Street & District AAP through its Thriving 
Chester-le-Street task group funded the Business 
Association to employ a retail consultant who was 
already working with major landlords in the Town to 

 
Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AAPs  
 

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

P
age 94



DB336/SCRUTINY 

deliver a social media campaign to promote the town 
and its independent businesses.  Since the project’s 
inception, over 20 businesses have been supported to 
develop a stronger social media presence. Phase II of 
the project is currently under consideration by the task 
group. 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
8) That the Business Rates Team and the Enforcement 
Team re-target all businesses eligible for Small  
Business Rate Relief who have not applied to date, 
publicise all forms of business rate relief available and 
the associated eligibility criteria via the DCC website, 
Business Durham and the Area Action Partnerships.  
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Business Rates Team has driven the 
implementation of this recommendation in the 
following ways: 
 
A targeted campaign has been undertaken throughout 
2018/19 and into 2019/20 to contact those ratepayers 
potentially eligible for small business rate relief  
 
In order to make this campaign as effective as 
possible the procedures for assessing and awarding 
SBR have been revised resulting in a more flexible 
and customer friendly method of implementing the 
relief. This has enabled additional awards to 61 rate 
accounts so far.  
 
The change in procedure will also ensure more 
accounts are picked up going forward at the point of 
making a ratepayer liable. 
 
Information continues to be shared by the Business 
Rates Team with other service areas to provide 
updates not only on SBR but all other available reliefs 
and exemptions.  
 
The new ‘retail discount’ available in 2019 was 
awarded automatically where possible resulting in 
reduced charges at the point the annual bills were 
issued – currently approximately £2.2m has been 

 
Business rates 

 Resources 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Ongoing 

P
age 95



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

awarded in 2019 affecting 941 accounts. 
 
The DCC website page for Business Rates is updated 
promptly and regularly with any changes affecting 
available reliefs and the Business Rate appeals page 
has been redrafted to make this process clearer. 
 
A noticeable lack of contact from ‘rating agents’ is a 
good sign that DCC is proactively promoting and 
applying available reliefs for its ratepayers with no 
agents commissions to pay. 
 
Highlighted that AAPs in the future could promote 
through various marketing and comms opportunities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AAPs 
 
 
 

Review Recommendation Progress Report of Action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

9)  
(a) That DCC considers introducing to some DCC 

town centre car parks alternative payment options 
such as contactless payments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(b) That DCC reconsiders when car parking initiatives 

such as ‘Free after 3’ are offered to ensure that 
any initiative is of optimum benefit to retailers and 
limits the length of free car parking in town 
centres to allow availability/turnover of spaces 
working with local stakeholders including DCC 

 
Contactless P&D machines were introduced in Middle 
Chare and Low Chare Car Parks, Chester Le Street, in 
May 2019. New contactless P&D machines were also 
installed in Sidegate Car Park, Durham City, in August 
2019, following the closure of The Sands Car Park.  
  
We will continue to install contactless machines in 
DCC town centre car parks moving forward. Galgate, 
Barnard Castle is expected to have a new contactless 
P&D machine by March 2020. 
 
 
The ‘Free after 3’ parking initiative is considered to 
support residents in the busy run up to Christmas. It 
can be an expensive time for people and this is one 
less spend for them to worry about. 
 
The timing of the scheme was chosen to avoid giving 

 
Traffic 

Management  
 

ReaL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Traffic 
Management 

 
ReaL 

 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 96



DB336/SCRUTINY 

Councillors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(c) That car parking provision in the 12 large town 
centres is an area of focus in the development of 
the ‘second round’ programme of masterplans.  

 

free all day parking to workers/commuters, allowing a 
turnover of valuable parking spaces. 
 
The initiative is well supported by councils across the 
region and is considered important in promoting the 
idea of shopping locally. Whilst the lead up to 
Christmas may already be a busy time for retailers, 
getting people to try out their local high streets will 
help to promote and support these local businesses 
throughout the year.  
 
 
c) Car park operations, capacity and wider car parking 
strategies form part of the work of the Technical 
Officer Groups co-ordination the development and 
delivery of town and village works. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Development 
and Housing 

Service 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongoing 

Review Recommendation Progress report of action taken to implement 
recommendation 

Resib’ty Timescale 

 
10) 

(a) That information in respect of AAP town centre 
projects are shared across the AAP network. 

 
 
(b) That the review group receives detail of progress 

made in relation to ongoing AAP projects focusing 
on supporting town centres and business.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Please see Love Beamish & Stanley that Stanley AAP 
and local County Cllrs have supported (Detailed in 
Recommendation 1). 
 
Cllr. Joyce Charlton has also supported a Stanley 
Town Centre Lamppost Banner project that will 
showcase local amenities and shop, eat and dine local 
messages. 
 
Teesdale Action Partnership - Elected Members, the 
AAP co-ordinator and Chris Myers have regular 
meetings in relation to town centre projects in Barnard 
Castle 
 
Bishop Auckland and Shildon AAP mainly through 
Cllrs Neighbourhood Budget has supported the 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Stanley AAP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



DB336/SCRUTINY 

 following projects: 
 
• Brass  - BASH in the Park   - Hackworth Park in 
Shildon.  Funded by Neighbourhood Budget each year 
since 2015.  Supporting Brass related activities in 
Bishop Auckland 
 
• Full Mooon Market in Bishop Auckland – 
Project in development  
 
 
• Velo 29 Cycle Event  - Bishop Auckland Town 
Centre 2014-16 
 
 
• Bishop Auckland Market  - Purchase of market 
stall and deliver of markets in Bishop Auckland Market 
Place -  2017 
 
• Town Ambassadors and Website  - July 2018 
 
• Food Festival Outreach -  Community Outreach 
projects to support the Bishop Auckland food Festival 
April 2019 
 
• World Host Destination Signage  - May 2019 
 
 
Durham AAP has supported projects linked to the 
town centre that have been promoted locally.  These 
will be passed on to the review group through any 
agreed processes. 
 
 
a) Spennymoor Area Action Partnership has 
supported the following projects  
 

 
 

DCC Yearly 
 
 
 
 

Durham Markets 
Company  

 
 

Velo 29 
 
 
 

South Durham 
Enterprise 

Agency 
 

BA TA 
 
 

DCC 
 
 

DCC, Highways 
 
 

Craig Morgan  
 
 
 
 
 

Administered 
through 

Spennymoor 

 
 

2015 
 
 
 

2019 
 
 
 

July 14, June 
15, July 16 

 
 
 

April 2017 
 
 
 

July 18 
 
 

April 19 
 
 

May 19 
 
 

November 
2019 

 
 
 
 
 

2014-19 
 

P
age 98



DB336/SCRUTINY 

Spennymoor Events Programme, Area Budget (AB) 
that funded a number of events from 2014 until the 
start of 2019, events included A Roald Dhal themed 
event, Brass busking sessions, Christmas events, a 
first world war centenary picnic, Spennygala  and the 
launch of the Cornish Trail. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Spennymoor AAP has also supported the Brass 
Festival every year since 2014 through until 2019 with 
some AB as well as some Neighbourhood Budget 
(NB)  from local members. 
 
Spennymoor Town Centre Improvements, 
environmental improvements to an area outside the 
leisure centre with some AB as well as some NB from 
local members. 
 
 
The Cornish Trail taking people around Spennymoor, 
highlighting 20 points of interest associated with the 
artist Norman Cornish, supported throu AB and NB 
 
 
 Spennymoor Party in The Park, supported through 
NB 
 
 
 
b) Spennymoor AAP has allocated AB to an 
events pot of money in 2019 although awaiting 
appraisal panel report to Board. 
 

AAP various 
applicants , 

DCC, 
Spennymoor 

Town Council, 
Success NE. 
Spennygala 

committee and 
Spennymoor 
Youth Council  

 
 

DCC Arts  
 
 
 
 

DCC Clean and 
Green Team 

 
 
 

Spennymoor 
Town Council 
with support 
from DCC 

 
 

Spennymoor 
Town Council 

 
 
 

Spennymoor 
AAP 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014-19 
 
 
 
 

2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 

2018-19 
 
 
 
 

2018 and 
2019 

 
 
 

2019 
 
 
 

P
age 99



DB336/SCRUTINY 

Spennymoor AAP has allocated money to Town 
Centre Improvements, environmental improvements 
around the Festival walk area to enhance the work of 
the Festival walk regeneration. 
 
Spennymoor Town Centre Improvements, 
environmental improvements to area around 
cheapside which has been funded from  NB from local 
members. 
 
 
2019 saw the conclusion of the Retail Support Project 
in Chester-le-Street which saw shop jackets applied to 
three town centre premises and six operational 
busiesses benefit from minor improvments such as a 
new shop signage. 

The Thriving Chester-le-Street task group continues to 
be a key stakeholder in the development of the £6m 
Flood Mitigation Scheme that’s currently in progress in 
Chester-le-Street town centre and has been asked to 
lead the work on a Public Art feature which will stand 
in the de-culverted area. The AAP Board also added 
£10,000 into the pot for this project. 

Working in partnership with the Do Business Network, 
the Chester-le-Street Leading Business Programme is 
due to commence in Chester-le-Street in the next few 
weeks. The project will serve to support business 
resilience and growth through a mix of mentoring, 
training, networking and workshops for 24 businesses. 
The Do Business Network (DBN) have a tested pool of 
expert mentors and also use the skills and expertise of 
local business owners to deliver mentoring to other 
businesses. 

The Thriving Chester-le-Street task group is currently 
seeking to develop a project which will see decorative 

Spennymoor 
AAP 

 
 
 

DCC Clean and 
Green Team 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019 
 
 
 
 

2019 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 100



DB336/SCRUTINY 

banners applied to lamposts on the town centre’s key 
routes.The group is also seeking to develop a project 
working in partnership with with Police to assist 
businesses to become more secure. 
 
Since 2009, the various AAPs have supported 132 
projects linked to town centres and business with AAP 
funding totalling £1.36m. This comprised of £623,188 
from Area Budget and £736,812 from DCC Elected 
Members Neighbourhood Budget. These projects also 
contributed £921,090 of match funding to the areas. It 
was highlighted that retail sector projects have the 
lowest £ for £ match rate, with each £1 of AAP funding 
spent bringing back 68p to the town centre.  
 
The Town and Village programme has devloped 
following engagement with the AAPs focusing on local 
issues, needs and opportunities.  AAps remain 
engaged in the development of Town and Village 
regeneration projects and participate in Technical 
Officer Group discussions to ensure strong linkages 
exist. 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 101



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held 24 September 2019
	7 Business Durham - Progress Report:
	Business Durham OS 7.11.19 App2
	B.DURHAM.REVIEW.2018-19.v.03-App3

	8 Visit County Durham (VCD) - Development and Marketing Activity:
	VCD EE OSC November 2019

	9 Economy and Enterprise OSC Scrutiny Review - Support provided to the retail sector by Durham County Council
	Retail support update (1)




